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1! OVERVIEW

Group snapshot

Revenue

Revenue has increased by
over 827% in the last 3 years
from £390m in 2020 to
£712m in 2022

Energy generation

Our renewable energy
assets produce enough
energy to power over
a million UK homes

Number of employees

We employ over 1,690
people

Carbon offsets

QOur renewable energy sites’
carbon saving is over 822,600
carbon tonnes this year

Nuniber of loans

Cver the year we
provided financing to, on
average 182 borrowers
in the UK

Number of sites

We own 220 renewable
energy sites spread
predominantly across
the UK
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Chief Executive’s review

Cur Group was i a solid position coming odf of

& (o Covid-19, ard our
ousiness nas conunued 1o perform robustly
throughout t

the oekdown respans
he year. Thiz year has seen scme

wriforecasted growtt in value Of certain divisionrs
prircarty crivar By 17e InCreasa in energy prices

Fern Traging Lirrted Mtre Comoany” or together
withts subsidiaries "the Group’] ta7gets consisient
growth for shareholders over (he iong term, with a
focus on steady and predictable growth, this is
particuially mpcriant dunng more challenging
econcmic cenditions We have o dversfed and

y £y b £y T

12 years of trading ~istory and armbitan

fie Groun

comprses more thas 300 companies tnat have

opcrated v a range of soctors cvar "m,rw/ years
goneraung steady long-term growth “ar our
sharenolders. We oserate in essetial sectors that

acily Through market

From th s secure pase we have ocen anlsg o ad
ncremental exe

measurad wa
new acdjac
Wt @ ot atf' rr
Gl EXi5TNG SUE
erergy. nrope
fibre and hcouse bmldmg CVISIONZ

tC be a significant crecerce wiitnn

QY rost
estabbsned sectors, producing £ 2% of the 1U<'s
salar erergy and 1.7% of the UK’s onshore wna
erergy ouiput, ana bul'dng a £261m sror and
medium terT anaing tusiness that faciitates the

CoOnstruction and Morovemant of nom

throughout tne |

2 mcrtics weil anead of eur taf-;;et
erznrum Tre extracrd ' nany growth
;

ur energy divison, whien ~as

sigriacent increase n long-term

ncrease i the value of cur energy div s.on was
g5

supported py solie operavonal performance acress

sl zectors and soma organic Growtn in newsr

A

eClors

We rernam a supportive erployer, with maore than

1,690 Full-time staff acrois the businesses that we
cwn and operate, arg indirec
prov.ded for hundreds rrore people througn

contracts mat we have In piace

A reflection on our year

PoOu busimess raises L4047 from investars this year,
deliversd consistent revanues while growing capital
ng In £712r0 in reverue

E425~) anc ret
02 F1.H58m restated)

P Tre Francal statements “or the year snow an

I ooperatng profit before tax of £43m against our

expaected outcomes of a smial accountng proft

roous performancs sy a drect resulr of energy
Sted for figher o

Cur usne

procuced by ne group eiry sc

fodunng the year Amost SO% of

comonses renewable erergy generalng ass

1 oas solar erergy sies and wing farms, whor provide
long-erm revenue swesms Theste greirtentionally
diversfied across & range of technolog es o mitigate
I agamst pror performance 11 & specAic sector and

I conwbute lowaras ;teady, predictable share price
growth, hiowever, ther values can sbll be impacied
by changes i» pr:: 3 and cermand We have seen

! consecutive anc Matenal Increases i lorg e

P erenns

BCONCIMY recovers froon the CO‘-Jid—l? cardem ¢

y
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Chief Executive's review

markets and siartng construchon on a large wnd
farm in Australia, AL the start of the year we added
nine addincnal sies o our reserve powsar daasicn
which brings us up to 26 sites n total (compared to
2ze stes have
nerating

ter sies for most of 20215, T
performed ahead of exgectauons, ge
EBITDA of 226m (2021 Z1m) durning the year.

Qur successhul and wel-established biomass
division continues 1o oerform weli and nas
deidverea stahle returns since acqusiianin 2005
This year, | have been part cularly pleases 1o see
srong performance at ocur neweast DIomass site n
was acquired n Aprit

sSnetterton, East Anglia, wnic
2021, provng to be a vawwanle additon to the
}_.

J

business. Gurrg the year we purchasec a Waste-
to-Energy facility currently under construction in
Ayrshire. The faciity has been in deveicoment for
three years and wili be capable of processing over
"85 600 ronnes per annum of non-recyciable
household, commiercial and industrial waste which
wolid otherwise be sent to lanofhil or exportad
This wiil generate 17 MWe of .cw carborn electricity,
encugn to power 30,000 nornes, |7 will oe the first
large-scal
western Scotland and projected completion date is
ir early 2024

e, sunsidy free waste-to-energy project in

Owver recent years, many of our energy assels have
beer under construction wiich has contr b ted to

our previousiy reported accounting losses, This is

typical of such Businesses during growth pnass
ever when cash generative, because finance costs

and accountng charges, swch as depreciation,
exceeded revenues Ths division nas now reacread

our target size and secter gplit.

Aczorgingly this year | ar

fore tax of £E48m aga nst our

D.eased to renort an
accounting orofit bed
budgeied small accouniing orohit Thig shightly
larger than expected profit s dus to the matunty of
the portfolin and higher erergy prees; resuitinig :n

increased revenue frem our energy div.sion as well
as aniricrease in nflatien {as explained below)

Ciur property lending busnass ma<es up arcund

comprises short and medium

27% of the Croun and
term secured cans to expenenced property
professionals, Th's establisked part of cur business
coninued to perform wed, following a short pernod
of stow do
ntenticnaly chose to write fewer lcarns
3182 lcans this vear to JK borrowers,

win during Cova-19 when we
. Cur average

lar boor wa

Crar lending division has always ooerated at
conservat ve (oan to value leves (pelow 70%), in
arder that 't mantains access o valuable security if
trere s a reduction in property values This strategy
has served the Group well s nce irception 12 yoars
g9, and it has operated through pencas of change
severa. urmes The Groug 1 taxing a naturally
cautous appreach when assessing new lendng
opportunities in light of the changing economic
outiook. To date, the Group has lent £.2 2br of
property loans since inception in 2010, sufferirg
orly £&rn .n cag:tal losses Trus strong track record
1s the resues of our careful approacn in this sector,
comprising disciplined due dilgence, conservative
loan-to-valuz ratios and an ability and wilingress to
reduce activity in this sector during times of
aconomic uncertainty. We wli cortnue o adopt
tris approach througnout the coming year

The heathcare division rmakes up arcund 4% of the
Group and is broadly performing well. Our
retrement villages business, Range‘ord Holdings
Limited ("Rangeford’) continued o selt apartrents
at three sies, commenced construction of a fourth
vilage ir Chertsey, anc acguired a fifth location
near Cambridge during the year Sales at the
Chertsey site are expeacten (o commence in 2024,
while construction at the Cambridge sie s
expectad to start in 2023 with the first sales
comrmencing in 2026,

Cur fiore division was established in 2019 and
remains an area of growth for the Group, Now
comprising of six operating businesses, Our

recidential businesses, Jurass,c Fitre Swis Fibre,




Chief Executive's review

Gigane. and Allpo rts Fiore are builaing ulirafast i Inflation and Interest rates
"fibre to the prermises’ broadband retworks in P The righer rate of iIrflation exgenenced s year 5
reg.orn neen overlockeo by ~as heen reapons e for some of the
arger ore vides conrecivity 10 oumeriormance against expeciatiorsr ne ;
nomes an ‘ke JH Lsing CityEnre Company’s snare cnce BM Tréasurn :

: i

ard Coenrcach frfoasiructure and Vitnd s a software | igh mharon s likely 1o be presenr unti 2025, a3 a

development company which nas cevewned Poresut we expect (o recawe more revenue for the !
oroorietary software 1o atow Internst Service toensrgy generated withn our energy division, and a .
Frowviders to el cormer;rivny over wholesais enabed o righer value from the government subsidies that ;
s miore. Vorhase s me I osome of aur ensrgy sites tereft from, !
: i
erpree fiore network =z focus b the vaue of those gtes Howe a <hort perica of ‘
: |
on provicing connect vty 1 busingsses in Londom. Domgh inflanen sacn s forecast haz very Itte effect 1
‘ I oon the rate at woch the Groue s expacisd 10 grow ‘
In the year, our residenual fibre businesses HE i
‘ . ' P This s pacadse the renewasie arergy s !
continues ¢ irvest capitalin expandirg thelr : ‘ ‘
. . Coderve thesr vawe rom GsCcourniey Drojerter :
retworks 10 the homa Counues, the Soutn and : ) i
. : TS OVE!r ine ti /
Southwest of England, ara are now orboararg : !
1 operae for, typicaly e 1
Custorners o ther networks gererating recuTning : /! - ;
—~ .. D ooutock for long-terr nflstior were 1o Increase, the ‘
revenues for the Groun Our stae-of-the-art : o ;
. o . Pormpact orn our snare prce shodid B8 0o30ve !
networks are able to rnest customer dermand for : . . :
L ) T onecause it woula ncrease tre reverce cach of our :
rigner broeadnsnd sneens H ;
) Pocites would expect 1o maks, in cortrast o a {
e ek ng-from- : !
¢ orelavvely Frad Cost tase
viden-on-demand servicas in Lo : Y @ !
als0 corurued 1o ouild and has nstal.ed over P The expacied rse inmntere !
50Ck of fivre witn 2 cormmibment to o Porewrn o normral afer a g \gmf.cam cenod of very .
fhre o Lo to 15000 nusiresses v Centra, Landon 1 .ow rates The rmmediate imoact of this o our !
by P opusiness s expactec to ne broaaly nautral since :
. N P oour Groug s mterionally structurad 8o as not o f
Whist our fibre dw SN a growlth prase : ’ 4 e )
- Doe ~ant valle ergsicn wher interest !
for tne next 3-5 years we co Not expect tto report .
torgies change. We continue 1 1a<e a caLuous I
Suntng proat : e
toanproach wethin our ierding busiress where the !
Towards e ena of the year, we arided a new i rsing nierest reres are felt mare ciosely, and we .
oronerty developer o the Groue. With the ancuiston | -gve trhe ablty o reduce the number of loans ;
‘ ; |
f Powe wre, or aler re nsk :
Pothrowgn recuong loan o !
Toacovity Incevtan pants of .
Tosao Hellel ot
ToEeR aporopna ,
: !
treate targes to delver b '
—~ : !
g 2L0 rign cuallty H '
: i
ttrorg exsirg : !
O st ire L ress
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Current trading and outlook

Since the year end, the Groun nas contnued to
perform steaaily from an coeraticnal perspecﬁve
and n lne with our expectanons aloeit we have
seen share price growth anead of targe! dus to the
cortinued increase in long lerm energy orice
growth targets for the Group over

aium amd long term remain urcranced, and

forecasts. Gur
g me
we conbinue W loeds ¢n maintaning a diversifiea
businessz tnat 1s cagame of deliverng mcre
predictatle growtn for shareholders.

Tne recently announcegd Elecuriaty Genersor Levy
"EGL wittin the ZUQ Firance B, wil have an
impact or: the relurns generated from cur energy
portfelc over the next 5 years, This s further
discussed 17 the growp finance review on page 27

Our property leading business continues ¢

perform strorgly, with increased oepmymert in this
sector zince the year end. We focus on short term
loans lour average current lcan erm is 17 montng)
which enables us o adapt 1o changes in aLiook
swiftly, we feel thisis particulary important in the
currert ecaromic clirnate.

Performarce in our healtvcare dwis'on continues
o be stable, ana we contmue o remain positive
about the opporanitas o improve perfaorrance ir
this secior.

Since yezr end, we have continuen © build out Gur
fhre networks, with construction tracking in ine

Wwith cur expeciahions We cortinue to review
opport.sites for both erganic ard inorganic
Qrowtr Supporting our existing management leams

In delivering tris strategy

n December 2027 we have acquired the nghts 1o
£25m cf right o uze maobie licenses frorm Three
UK, thus making the first step towards hecorri—g an

rmohiie vittua, network operator.

Our mix of busineszs areas hez

and may evolve further over trie years anead, Jriven

s devegped over tme

by the overarchirg mportance weé place on

meeting the oibjectives of our sharenclders Tris

should not be read as any indicaticn of a whaolesae
a

U>

change in the sectors in whch we operate, but &
reftection of e role played Ly the strategic
rrandate in protecting shareholders interests

ur mix of business areas has

developed over time, driven by
the overarching importance
we place on meeting the

objectives of our shareholders.”
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Our business at a glance

What we do

Fern Trading iy
of nearly 220 subeid ares (together the "Group’) Our

2} 18 the parent company

Groud operaTes across Ive key areas energy,
~ealthcare, tendng, fbre and house

the past tweve

= pusldirg Cver

ears wa b

dwversified group ¢f operating Dusnesses trat are
well positioned to deiver long-term value and

predictacle growth for cur snarehoders

1. Energy division

We gernerate power fom sustainable scurces and

sel the ecergy produced either drectly to mdustral

CONSUmMers ar 1o

arge networks, Many of our

newabhle ensrgy sites quailly o7 covernrrent

incertives, wh ar additional source of

meorme We have alse ur;:Jsea OUr exDeuse n

reriewable

@5 for sale or

ongoing operation At year erd e Group rnad
2% sites under contiructicn

ergy o construct fagi

2. Healthcare division

s o our

We provide "omes anc lessure facit
ageng popwalon, and orvate hospitals which
proviae high-gualty neslthcare services acrs

oDeralona: Sres rtre LKL

Solar. wind,

3. Lending division
Wwe =nd o a short and masium @erm, secured
asstoalagen

We alzo grovide fMmancing Lo eaakne other bushness

te build assets ard otrer residental ard
COrITIErcial propermeas,

4, Fibre division
We owrn and operale ficre oroaaband retwarks
across varlous areas of e UK We build tne

retworks ana cornact them to hames and

cusinesses to provide our custernears with ultra‘a

5. Home building division

Durnirg the year, wo successiuily ontered the nou

suilaing sector, acau nng Zlivia Homes whien has a3

strong track recod of develop g hores in g

sustaimazie marines The cormzany s a full-service

croperty develepes, meanmg it prov das sery

from the desigr, to (he ergineenng and wrer firal

Consiruciuon 1o ensure the deivery of qualty

workmanship

- Property lending, Retirerment Ultrafast fibre T
laﬂg;ﬁasgg developrnent villages, private broadband across Res'dggf;;house
935 financing hospitals the UK ¢

resernve power

Comateast g Doeratina
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Our business at a glance

Tre strength of our Groun's strategy s in both s
operational dveraity and the return profite of theze
businesses. Our lending business provides flexibility
and strong rewrns over the short term, while our
enerqy, healthcare, ibre and nome buildirg
divisions cffer vishitity and stability of returns cver

ine longer term.

The scale of our busress s a key strength, enabling
LS Lo acquire iarge-scalé establizhed o

wel as the opporturnity to enter new s
=

rrnireal rizsk o e whaie Group by se.

Sector split’
Winc 22% —
Solar 20% -
Reserve power §% o
Ciher 3% 7
H M Owning and operating assets 69%
KE Lending 31%

Fern's sector
allocation

businesses with comprahensive busness plans and
strong managemert teams. T s enables us 1o
coninue to diversify odr pusiness without
compromising on the qualty of our ocperations.
Cwver the past three years, we Rave successfuly
entered the fibre broadband sector and we nowy
owr six companies with exciting plans to deliver

uitrafast oroadband across the UK

- - Healthcare 1%

Property 27%

i — Reserve power 2%
= Solar 1%

~-Flore 5%

~--Healthcare 4%

~ Landhll gas and tiomass 9%

‘Sector spbit s given by vaiue, as represanted an tne company balance sheet of Fern Tradirg Limited
= ¥ b [ ]
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Our business at a glance

Where we operate

We are proud that the businesses

contrputior o soc ety from

creznon of homes ana the oravisior
a

of quak

A i £
Wond farms
Reserye power plars

letirercert villages

OB E - d®-

bospials

-
=

Fiore natworks

As weve growr

o
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Our business at a glance

Making » differencea

We are proud to cperate a Group that makes a
positve contribution (o society across the UK,
gererating renawable energy, prov.ding quality
healtncare irfrastructure and retirerrant tving and
deliverng hign-speed brozdband to underserved
areas of the country

Encrgy
We currently own 220 enargy sites, producng

3.75GW a year. That's enough energy 1o power over

a millicn nomes.

Crar combination of techrnologies solar, wind,

f
reserve power, biomass ang lancfll gas
ent each o

energy 1argets ires

comple ther weil, helping the UK

mees its peciive of the weather,

The Fern Commuunity Furd is a social entergrise run
by the Group, which works 1o d'stribute community
furds gererated from our wind farms. This year, the
Ferrt Community Fund has awarded £1.4m to local
community groups, sunported 13 local university
students througn odr Student Scholarskip Fund,
and provided a winter fue! subs.dy to /06 residents
f

who are local to the Group's assels

Healthcare

Our retirement villages provide nigh-quaity,
contempcerary Iving spaces, with 579
accommocation units currently in place, ana
schermes in varous stages of development offering

over 550 addiiona: accommaodation units

A friendly community is at tre heart of our

retirement vilages, which is why -r cur
developrents we provide central fac lities and a
hub of social activity for our residents

Lending

The loans we made during tre year have helced (o
und the construcuon of student accommodatior

and much reeded residental properties.

We cortinue to extend leans 1o 24 taxi drivers and
fleets (o enabile them o use electr ¢ vekhic!
reducing capital

Carbor em.ssions in our ¢

Fibre

Through our fibre division we are buiding cut the
fibre outic broadband retwork across the UK.
of our managerent teams are tocussed on
bulding out hore optic broadband networks for
rasi
fift s builaimg a finre network W
connectyity. Our sixth s a software development

our

dental customers and small businesses, and a

deliver enterprise

operating in the fibre secior ard
panies

COmRany
providing services 1o our grout con

AT

Withun this division we have plans to create 2
network providing conrectivity 1o over ane milkon
properties in the next three yaars, many of which
are in small towns and vilkages that con't currently
have access 1o Inernal connectivity fit for maodern
ways of working and commuonicating.

Mot only dre our fibre bus nesses bmgi.ﬂc
conneciivity to Lnderserved communities, they are
3tz generaung employment ocpoortunities for
young indivicuais via traming acacem.es and
apprenticestup scherres, and are dniving diversity in
Telecoms, witn one of cur comparies Faving
launched a

intc the s

rurrher of initiatives to recruit worner
ector.

Home buitding

Cur homre buiiding divizion utiuses
proporton of sustainacle tmier frame

3 high
construction
methods a=d installs ar source heat pumps ir atl
properties, leading the way In this secter and

Carpon emiss ors

neiping reduce ¢
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Qur strategy in focus

2ar businesses

Energy
Throogh our energy dvizion, the Group owns ard

O

veraes energy sites woich supply 9as and

electr:city irto the net

work, a5 well gs Coriructng
Cf the 220
at we own and operatze, 194 provide
ortribubirg 1o the Group's
producers of

renewatle energy sites for future sale
energy sites i
renéwsanle emerg

positicr a3

('D

he largest |

£r

wnewab\c energy from commertal scae

N the UK Eqergy sites are typicaily exgectad o

generate stable profits for many yesrs. as such
owniIng and operat Ng Imese Dusinesses s

to the of thearr ¢

a
Dup DECEUS potentia. to detver
prcdlctac cr tne lcmg ferm

nrofis oy

Renswahle energy sites gererae power from
sustamatle sources and seill energy produced e ther
directly © arge industrial consumers or 10 ine

~avwork. Many of curre

wahle eneargy

aualify for government roenives, which resuits
portior of the gorerated energy ber=htng from
rales tmat are lockes in for a speched pencd once
a gualify'ng siie s operatonal and scereditatior has

secn granted fims has reduced sorme of the

pact
of tre volatiuty in long-termr erergy once forecasts
As new sites cuill v the UK do not gquadty for

Fusior ¢ goverrmant Neartives, We are Seeimg more

irterest in thae market for sites like the orcs we own

wwaing and cperating energy sites s a core gart of
Cur strategy anda currertly makes Jp airmost 60% of
th DuD'S net ou

ssets Tz part o of

—
e e

Did you know?

solar sites

terr. This comibrTaiuon (s key 1o g
palance nis< and return across the range of Group
activities to gerarate larget retrns for sharehciders

“Our energy sites generated over
3,750 GWh of power.”

Doe w the high-qualty energy sites we own, we

are able to secute wong-termr fnanci

ng rom

strear Danks at comnpelitve rates o enhance

our returs, which helps Js to aeliver the leve! of

eLIrms our shargnciders expect
Whie cur renewsble ensrgy pusiness stasted dfe

e Group Has b
expertse acrost clher adiacent iecrraolog-es

the solar energy sector tn

nclucimg onshore wird, tiomass and larchil gas

sJpported Dy re
sackug powes to e hatioral Grid e Group

Serve power piEants whicn provige

therefore cerefits rom aiversifcaton within thg
par: of 1s busress, snce weaxer cond o
energy oroduct on fr one technalog

rostronger prcductloru elsewnerz Tre

ga ns s grifcant cenchit from its scae
a3 o4 bus nessis cpread 37ross aver 220 sites,
vastly redu fone

site sLfers an ope

o'ng the s o me p profranitity

<

ratonal gisruoTon

If laid end to end, our solar
panels would stretch from

London to Mexico City.




o
b

2 | STRATEGIC REPORT

Our strategy in focus

In acdittor o cur UK sites, the Group is developirg
lerstand

criunity as the

sites overseas, ir Jurisdictiors that we unrd
well. These presert an attractive opn
build on cur secior expertise in countries at an
arier stage of renewanle cevelooment Currerty
we operate wind farms in lreland ard France and
solar sites in France and Australia We nave several
wind sites undes corstructor in Poland, Frarnce

and Australia.

Ouring the year we acqu-rad n.re reserve power
clants and ore erergy o wasie site. Following
constrachaon, we soid two wind farms in Fintand and
shiartly after tne year end we also soid Darlirgtor
Point & large solar s.tein Australia,

Healthcare

Through our healtrcare divsion, the Group
operates in the prvate mecical and retirement living
sectars Qur retirernent iving business, Rangeford,
owns and operates two retirement villages in
Wiltshire and North Yorkehire and s currently

aoveloping three further sites for future operations.

Our private medcal buziness, Cne Healthcare cwns
and cperaies two private hospitals in Kent ard
Hertfordshive, prov-dng the very sest level of care

in modern, well equipped hospital facilities

Since returring to normal workirg patlens we have
g ir the numoer S paying
for their cwn treatment as they face long waiting
tsts for NHS treaument. Dospite the lifting ¢f

d restnictions ac

seern ar Increas of patent

widesprea ross the UK, Covig-L
connnues to affect the acute care sector with a
stressed NES and increazed infecton coniras

measures tnat rerrain in place

Lending
Lending contnues to be a core part of our business
and has proviced the Group w i a orofitable and

cast generative secior over the past twelve years
This well-astabushed part © Group mamly
corsisis of property lending, which provic

f o

short-Term fnancng 1o exserences prof ss.onal
property developers, buy-to-iet lardards seeking
bridging finance; ang deveicpmert financing,
wh-ch provides short and mediur term financing
o companias,

A key beneh of the scale of our Group and of the
bLsiness that we nave uilt up N this sectar s our
ability 1o mitigate nisk througn having a lage
numoer of shiort and medium terrm Dans spread
zCross sirall proiects w individual borrowers We
proacively manage counterparty risks through
underiaking careful borrower due dilgence, ta<irg

“Lending continues to be a

important part of our

business and has provided
the Group with a profitable
and cash generative sector

over the past twelve years.




Our strategy in focus

secunty over gssets typically on a first charge bass

and Mmainaring Corserva A-to-value ratics,
Not a.

méasyres belp o mir

)
[

Sans will perf
irise Ire impacl o
cerformancs issues o an ingavidual ioar. Ths s

furiner mitgaed wrough the value tnat we lend t-

individual borrowers, relative to sur total loan book,

WRICH S Currenty spread on average across 182

Wans, with an averace ndividual lean of £2 3m

Fibre division

Qur hbre arisic inciudes five operatonal
companies buiding Sore networss in the UK and
one sofiware develcoment conpany.

Trhrough our

Bulcimg new priys Ca. Gore natwor«s for
commun:ites: irire LK and wo far have ou.lz out
finre infrastiruciure i underzervea pasts of Devorn,
Somerser, Darset, Wilishire, Harmpshire,

Waorcestershire and frne Home Courtes We are

aming o pass over one miker Fomes over the

next 2 wears,

Bulding these large networks
arge aatacenres and elephone excnanges ir e
Uyt o

tr

replacing

s ard busines

ooper wires t
Ciganet are vernically integrated, az trey botn owr

the fibre i"\:(’“iir‘l_JCtU.'C' ard a.:0 have the erd

cus th"f"ww re

Fat were laid in the first

cuUstomer.

hroudgr Yorboss, we are bu; Ld\’“g & nana

London o supp;v b.xsme
enterpr;se connectvity o
ers vorbess nas nstalled cver
fibre cotic cables n _crnoen singe 202
cently aunches a s
g tha; ambtous Landor
i qu Pk\y require more nan the 1Gops
7ectwity thc—y vereied on to date

o)
o]
i}

We ~ave seen rapd growh in cur 9ore dwision

since Z018 ana we expect s

S OVISION O Contruae

mie g larger part of cur Dusimiess gver srre.
“ely flon o
cartal oy 2025 o fuldl s ouild plans arg reach

The Group cxpects to spend aporoxima

more comotunities i need of Llrrafast broachara.

T

Home building
Our new hame buidimg ousiess, Eilva s a full

service housebunder, acquinng iard, deveioging the

ste, and subssseently se.!md tra homes o

]
0
‘D
Il
=
(Tr

ndividuzl puyers The:
rnarket and arfa_:r::aﬂ
~igh guaity
growng fas
£250m ard €
v ohin the next 2-3 years

ncde a mix of opan

and sfrive = cel;

asorat oral hames The cusires

Twith projected an-ua. wurnover of

600 nouses bwlt cer year forecasted

the Alccints nebwork
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Directors

The experienced Board of Directors for the Fern Group are responsibte for
determining the strategy of the business and for accounting for the Company's
business activities to sharenolders. They have a set of complementary
commercial, energy sector-related and strategic skills.

Paul Latham . - - ° oo 0w

Pauiis Chief Executive of Fern and is responsible for the day to-gay runring of the
busness. Fe s alse @ rmaraging director of Ocioous investrments Limited ("O17,
where he has workea since 2005 Olis a key sugplier of resource and expertise
¢ Farn Palls dual role ensures that ths relaticnsnin waorks effectively and in the
best interesis of Fern's snarehclders. Paul has had various gereral managameant

and nternal consulting reles across a number of seciors and brings wth him
a wealth of industry and bus ress exper ence

e Heith Willey o oo e Ton o
a

Keith 5 a3

n asscoiate orofessor of straiegy and entrepreneurship at London
Business School He alse nolds various nor-executive directorsh

cs and advisory

roles at high growth and more mature companies. In his role as non-axecdive
crairman he 1s responsiple for the effective operaticn of the Board, as well
as its governance Be brings to the Fern business independent commercial
experience gained frcm his tme in gcadarmia, private eguaty nvestment,

consulting and various nands-or operational roles,

Peter Barlow oo oo e e

Peterhas over 30 years experence nirternational Fnancing of infrastructure and energy
Ag a senior execltive for International Power, Peter was responsible for arranging over
S12bn of proect and corporate funding, as well as kaniking relationsn 'os and treasury
activiies. ke has spant over 20 years workng interratonally for HS5C, Ban< of
Amenca and Nomura, firancing acguisitions and greenfield oro ects in the energy
and nfrasiructure sectors. His combrnation of Board-level financing and energy
experence over nuUrmerous energy sub-sectors, and his allb-rourd knowledge of
all the sectors in which Fern operates, adds significant value 1o the operaticn of
the Board as well 35 1t3 strategy formation anc deployment

Tim Arthur oo - s a0 oo

Tim is a chartered accouniart with more than 25 yeary internalorar experienc
as a fnance director of beth pable and private companies Intally he worke
for Prce Waterhouse in Birmingham and Chicago. More recently he was Chie
Firanciai Offcer of Lightscurce Renewale Energy Ltd, 3 glona leader in the

=4
-

{3

=

funding, deve.cpment anc long-term operaucn of solar pnotovolta.c projedcts,

Tim brings extensive financial and accountancy knowledge to the Board as

well as ar understanding of dynamic technolcgy businesses ganed from his
exacutive positicns,
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Principal risks and uncertainties

Principal risks

-

Maragement igentfy asiess and manags acke
assocated wirn the f;'zup; buiness

Torn external scurces, those
arket,

nal nsks contaned winim the

eqy. Risks arize

which are rherent comrnerc:al nsks in the m
and frorr coeratic
vad wiinin the

ged across

througn tre diversifzaton of activities,

SYSIRMS ana processes empio

bus ness. Overall rick axposure is mana
the Group

ooth by secror and gecgraphy

Risk

A, e

Mlt:gat:ons

R A s et aEaas

Market rask B
The energy sactoris g

@ mmfamtwbw—r“ and there .
msk that forecas el of ircome

are not achieved dues to changesin

111111 M3akamadnia

Contract

[T
Ql

EAErEITING

Nraenes

e erterad into wich
he EMENGY gcf’ir’atﬂd
_ong-term ’rvemme Nt backed oﬁtam agreemen

4 ~:" Energy Dlwsion

sovarnrrert anc e G

Wwonlesais energy onces, ofF-tavs
Contracts or goverrment subsid e o Weeargage \A-M ‘hvﬂ
Jue to fus wirbulent envirgnme cectncty Marsets { OF

“he powental forircreased Wik GOlicy maxers v
IMErvernon Dy the regu.ator is also
a5k

Cranges ir Government policy
nay resullin reduced incare
streams within e group cue ™o

ddd tonalav es.

Unprad ctabea

Operat:onal rrsk
cevels of erergy produced ~ay
be lower than antic-pated due w .

su-optimal weather cond tors

Regular servicirg o

W set future regulato

dversificanion ,f echn

353275 !
are kept 1 gGon Coraition

The principal ris«s tha
are describea be.ow. along with

ACLONS v

the rsk We aiso incivde our

the iikelhood of me rak has incre

or remamed e same

fx theircome for a
Y Gl s tes.

eObmu o ger::ﬁcaf.m‘
of QLI erergy INCOME wWas
revenye

ey

& of Gasand

GEMT O contr ou:

Y reQuIterents

Or Gerforrnance ssues with assats are urava latile for a
€ALLHMENT, wich m;/ result in
qw"c»r t unular red tme
Fmanc:at risk: « Managerert ersures o porton of the Groups
Revenues (fror energy assets anc revenues ar o oo canved from

FE AP SE A SNE D0 0 P e
Cererador, Or sg3ie Srogesels
e
<

ffroor the sale of ctes) g

from oversess stes are lower tan

ex ;;ect el due o fuciual ong 17

foraigr ExCrarge "*fs

Construction risk: . Tf«z Croup enters

Corstraction of ine sites takes
WanNger G s rore Cosiy,
anuc oated aue
avarabll

ravw matenas

“ere apprennate

—_

e
)

ASSESSMENnt

o an industry voice I

tthe Group are exposed ©
the m wtgatmg
we taxe o reduce the potenti:

atmpact ©
whetrner

ased, dacreased

)

cressad

{due to maret

mstabhty)




Cha nge

R|sk Mitlgatlons
Market HSI( « Management reguiarly reviews fhe Lorroetl we andscane
Expected sales frorn customers In target buld areas to ensure plars do ot conflict with

than anticipated due to
L other

are lowier
rereased cornpeiingn fron
providers

A change n pelcy by the
regulaors in favour of larger
operators could impacl cur ablity
to delver plarnad devecorment,
reducing revenJass ana efficences
ga red from & iarger presence in a
Dart \rutar ares

Constructlon rlsk
Constructan of the retwork
takes longer or -5 more Costy
than anticipated due to resource
availabitty or inCreased cost of
2w makerials,

Operational risk:

Network service is interrupted or
Jnreliab e leading o potentia: loss
of customers and reputational
damage.

Bicn
o '*&&’iﬁﬁé
z;rm::m@ﬂ

¢

iy

i
a:z:eun

e
Fpigey 3 143

cther aternative network operators.
Maragement engages proact vely with the O
Corrmunications ana the Governrment t¢ ensue
Lenchits of sraller operators are well Lnderstood
rterests are approprately represented.

We are an act've particioanirn relevantndusty bodies
parncularly those representing alternative netwc
ORErauors.

Tne GAroup ha ccmtrar‘*ed with a murnbar of o r‘r—rrr.t
suppliers to reduce fhe exposure to any one ndividua!
entity. Selecton of outsource pd'trerc s managed
tarougn a detailed procurernent process with long term
visiplity of work adowing partners to ,L lan financial and
people resources accordingly
Where supcly chain protiems are expaected for cnncal
iterns our teams generaily nave 6 months stock of fibre,
duct and other rnatenals cn hard, and advance order
te cﬁmrcl eqummprt wvith L rwg l@ad Hmes

Crur networks are .,um i areslient way thh diver
route optons should a failure occurin one route
Tris, combined with an ability to 1identify and resoive
connectivity 1ssues quickly, minimises downtime of the
networks

Feree
i ELri e TN
aias ke -

i V%laﬁnshemnx.s‘i
ﬁ’»amm«n i it

increased
{due to more
COMpeallors in
the market)

increased (due
10 INCressing
cermard for
resOuUice In
the sector ac

alterrative
retwork
providers scate
ounld)

fo
foa

No charge




Risk

Market risk:

increasing

nflation and interest
rawes lead to a market-wige
affordabllity igsue, rezd'ting in 3
drop o property values soross sl

ecicrs of real estate. This may
Impact cur ability to recover a
lanin full throuck a refinance
O f‘dl,o

Counterparty risk:
LDENS May Do mards 1o unsutable
counterparties, Impactirg our

aniity to recover the ican paaroe

17 fll

Rlsk

Market rlsk (Healthcare and
Home Building):

Afall i nouse orices cold
imgact our ability to generate
expected revenue from the sale
of apartmertsin our retrement

O apar
o nouses

vllag

Construction risk (Healthcare
and Home Building):
Corstruacucn taxas lorger or

I3 mMcre Costy tnan arucpates

y or

Health and Safety risk
{Healthcare):
The preveston of ryury or

avoicacle lozs of lfe o' cur

patianls s of JUT oSt oo laT e
and 13 cr':icat MANEITING 3

5 Lt gaticr as

\J
3 resLily f edlv al ma pract’cs
L

B T

 Meaithcare/Home Building Divisions -

EGIC REPORT

M;tlgat;ons

e ] momaatnE nan e,

¢ The am™s oro-aclvely manage out gositon 1n the
rmarketplace aro are prepared o enforce wnere reeded | f
a loar moves nto cefault

« Our icars are made at corservative loan-to-value (LTV]
ratios with a raxiram LTV of 70%.

ed azainzi chysical underying secur ty,

uch asa m»‘rge ovor the preperty or ciher assets of e

' seare typecally ON a Tret chiarga basis 1o
ensure Max murn chance o recavery sncdd erfo
action be needon

« Thorough cue digence & performed oror 10 wit ng
loans, ncud ng property or lard vawations end credit
chetks done on oorrmwers

- Whore leans are wrtten for assets unacer construction,
m&est/)r-es and coveﬂah*s are Du* i place to ensure

zing fur rer Gmmdowmr

erreant

Mitlgations

. DLam rg consents on urdeveioped |
raximise revandes srd recuce the ns

strong tralk record of delver 1g s

Efgls= et 1e! bw‘ polic.es 3nd orocedares
meaical 3erv ces We review tris
o are

"’J a5,

R
S

Mo change

4

increased idue
to urisable

[SesTelel el
climate)
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Principal risks and uncertainties

Mitigations

Change

© e A b i b A i B e e

[r—— PR

Market risk:

Anircreaze ir Dase rates mray
ncrease costs on dent fagiit es,
impactng the Group's ab ity 1O

sery.ce dedt 35 it falls gue

Liquidity risk:

Poor management of cash wathin
the Group could impact the
Group's 2oility to meet ontigationrs
ac they fali due

Health and Safety risk:

The safety of our errployees

ard tnose emoloyed through
contracts ace of paramount
mporance There s a nisk that
accidents nihe workplace could
resull m senousrury or deatn

Cyber Security risk:

An attack on our 1T systems and
data could lead 1w disruption

of cur operations and loss of
cusiomer data Loss of rrisuse
of data may result n repatational
darnage, reguUiatorny aclion under
GDPR and potential fines

« Whiere floating rate debtis in place { re nterest vares
Irane weth an undertying berchmark ratel, the Group
enters INto hedgnig arrangements to fix a portion of these
cayments throaghcut the term of the faclity Fedging
arrangernerts are gutined n Note 21 of the financ’af
statements.

<,

Incraased
due tonse in
rierest rates)

» Adetalad cazh flow forecast s prepared ard reviewed
by management on a monthiyy basis, ncorporating cash
valandity and cash reguitemerts across the Group. On at

a
least a gaartarly basis this is shared w'th the Board
» The Group moniors bank covenanis on an ¢ngae ng basis i
I

e contriued adherence (¢ covenants Wherg
arts can't be rret, “orecasts are ugdared for tne

lower cash avalable as a resut of the restrictan,
« Tre Group has a fiexible inance facil ty wimch can be

drawn on at snort nouce to meet imraedate business
needs.

[N

o charge

I
9
b T
5

« We have developed robust health and safety policies in
corrpliance witn iS045001 across the Group (o ensure
the wel-peing of our staff

» Hegalth and safaty training is orovided 1o our staff and

contractors on a reguiar basis

+ We employ a Chief Informalion Securty Officer ("CISO7)
whio is responsible for data security across the Group ard
reports guarterily 1o the Board.

+ The CISO works Clozely with cur pusinesses 1o ersure wae
adeguate stardards of secarnty and informat
managemant are met.

« Fach of our businesses that hod cusiomer data has their
owh dedicawed rescurce for IT and security

Lon Ne change

The strategic report was aporoved by the Board of Cirectors on 16 Decemper 2022 and signed on its behal’ by.

PS Latham
Cirector
16 December 2022
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Corporate governance

Section 172 {1} statement

The Board consicer that they have adhered to the
regrarernents of section 172 of the Companies Act
2006 (the "Act’), and have, n good “aith, acted ma

likely o promote the

way that would be mo
success of the Croup for the benefit of s mempears
as a whole {rav.ng regard to all staxeholders and
maters set outin secron 172(1a-f) of the Act)

in the decisions taken durirg the year c—nded

30 June 2022

I the performance o its duty to promote the
success of tne Group. the Board has regard o a
neudicg tne likely

ce of ary de

number of rmatiers,

consegue cisiors in e long terr, and

lstens 1o the views of the Grous's key stakenc.cers
to buid trust and ensure T iully understards g

poterual 'rapacts of the d
Board fuifus these dutie pany Ly aelegation o

ds of subs.diary

s10ng it max<es. The

corrmitesas and e bho
undertangs. wiho Cperate within 2 corporae

governance frarnewsrs across the Group

At every Board mesung a review of heaith ard

safery across the group, financial ard opesrasona:
nerformance. as weli as legal and reguiatory
complia“ce, 5 undertaxken. Tre Board also review
other areas over ire course of the financal year
includirg tbe Group's busitess S—trategy, key nsks,

\ncusi‘.-"tty

o,
Syax

enguder-

ted matters,

ery ronrmental ntatiers,

C
goveraance, complarce anc Legal regtiers

Principal decisions
We deqne or noipal decisions takar by the Board a¢

N o - D o b y i
those decis.ens tnat are of 8 sirategeg nature and
e

L g -
S Owing are

cavnas

Crouo acguiret ¢ large sca.we, ready to constree
wnid site in Austral
with the

ia. Tris depmymenz aé;gns
Grouo's stralegy 1C contino

develco renewab.e erergy sies waeh grovide

oracictable, lorg-term revenue sireams Tne
Joard corsiderad the opporiunty and how it
Al gred wth odr opjeclves 1o make g positive

cortrbuticn 12 ke comimunity and environment
The Growp decided to expand inta our rewest
awis.or, nouse ausaing, in May 2022 tne Group

acauired cavia IeTmes. a fld

2rv.Ce pronerty

€ design,
10 the engimesnng and then fina, consruction
s
Dversfyng the Group's asse! bate ard entenrg
nto This new s2ctor has Been well thouagnt

ot with lang term growtn nmind Tre Boara
thin the
Gefore cec'dny to mave akead with this

o, considernng how e wo

developer, provd rg services frorm th

to ensJre the delvery of auadty workma

Le3580 The strated.C opportu-ites

acguis i mpact
existing ousinesses with n the division ard hiow

it aligred with tre Group's strategic onecives o

deliver g-tern valuz and predictate

for our charenaoidsr

growih

reviewing and cec'ding to mave aread with

NCregsng Bomass Operaions whion s part G
cur renewanies divaior. in Octocer 2021 the

Droun acodires a large scale, wase-to-enargy
consiruction site in Sco
aligrs witn the Grouc's

Trs deploymert

Cy o centinue 1o

arsfy ne Group, Geveios re

‘Nobfe energy

sites whicr proy de oradictable, long-term
revende SIre3ris, ard orov.Ge resll ence aga nat
wrslesae oric ng charges in the Ll erergy
macke! Tre Board cors dered rhe opoarturity

ard now T argned with our ok octves 7o
TAKE & BoSltyve Conl Buron o the comimanty

ard eryircarrent
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» The board decided o ¢change asdit irmz via a
0 June 28022
ed sigrifcantly since the

tender crocess fo the year ended 3
The Group had chang
crevious auditors were gppointed and therefore
we weare unable to reiably asseis the valde for
money we receved Trree firms undenwent

tne terder process and Ernst & Young LLP were
selecicd because of their strong ¢
e

urdearstanding

crmmercial
fEcient audt
rmethadology and value for ney.

of our busness,

Business strategy
Our business strategy 15 set
ic Report

A
1

cuton pages 1 to 14 of

.

2y
]
w
=
=
o3}

=

]
B

L Maragement pregares a

o budget which 1s approved by the
rarnual bas's erg forms the basis for

the Group's resource plarnirg and deployment

decisions. In raking decisions concerning the

busiress pian, the Board has regard first anag

foremost 1C its strategic focus, but also te otrer

rmatters such as the interests of its various

-term impact of it

= the Group's futdre and reputation.

stakehalders and the lang
actions ¢

Shareholders

Sharehoider relations and generating sharekolder
value 15 a key consideration when the Board is
making strateqic decisions. The prime medium by
which the Groug commuricates with sharehiolders
iz through the arnual report and finarcial
staterments, which aim o provide shareholders with
a full understanding of the Group's acuvities and s
results This informauor is published on our wedsite
al www . ferntrading.com.

Employees

The Group's employees are fundamental 1o the
overal. success of the business. The Drrectors futfil
thelr guty 1o emoicyees by entrusting oversight to
supsidiary Boards which the Chief Executive of the
Group also sits on.

“ne girectors of the subsigiary undertakings

manage the day '0 Gay gedision making,
engagarnen: and communications with emp.cyees

and ensure that ne
valued with -espect to pay. benefit and cond t.ons.

oole are treated fairly and are

we fully reause that our ermngloyees wish o ke
informed ard consutted on matters affecting their
work and 1o be irvolved in probler-soiving
afecuryg thar own areas o irterast and
responsibiity The Groap is firmly commitied to &
polcy of good carmmunication at al levels and we

almr 1o estaplish a cimate wrich constantly
encourages the open fow of information and
ideas. Presently this ncludes monthly team brefings
at a loca: level and the pubiicatior of monthly key
performance incicators coverng output, operating
costs, and resltnh and salety

The heat
workplace
its broad operational business The Directors
Heath & eeting to
ensure appreoriate polces and procedures are in

hoand safety o our employees in tha
e is a continual focus for tne Croup, given
review

Safety Repcrting at each board

place to protect the heath and safety of our
and contracters. Where there are
these are followed

employecs
potertal deficiercies
Jp and resolved on a

having oversigrt of the actiors taken

or ssues,
imely basis, with the Board

The Group outscurces activities ana management
of certain operational activities to external suppliers.
Where activities are outsourcad tne Board ensures
at they are man
rmeer all the relevant industry and regulatory

commitments as well as treating employees fairly.

zned by recutable suppliers who
e oy

Expecies standards are documentad in all service
contracts and adherence to these are continualy
mortored by Board through their service

agreement with Gciogds investments Limited.

Suppliers and customers
The Group acis in a fair manner with all suppliers
and custorners ana seeks o maniain strong
busiress relatiornships with thern. This is achieved
by all contracts being negotiated through a fair and
transparent tender process whick includes
assessing the impact

or the long-term objectives of
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the Group, We review our paymenrt crocessing

trnies against Conwacts every six monirs 1o ensure
supplers are paid orompLy ana s rformaninon for
the compary ©

websie

available on the www.gov.uk

The Group ensures it acis o r/ and In a ranzoarent
e

marnertcal c

Lstomers across all divt 5 and
services, and acivey engages 1 resowve

or defaulis The Bogrd closety 1w onitors custorrer

nerics and en ges with the na

ragemeant feam o

Tance does

imvestiments Limited

[

nd s Mpal;e' wlih
responsibiaty for the orovision of operat'c
cvers.ght, financial adruristration and corrpary

secretarial serv ees

cen

Community and environment
The provisicn ard operation of sustai-able

nfrastruciure 's at tne centre oF the Group’s

strateqic goals Tarougn s busiress acuwilies the
Group szeks to make a pos.dve contribution i the
communty, environment and econory Sur
reneywabie erergy business s neping the UK reest
its renewable energy targets, our private hosoitals
have supporied the N=5 nroughout the Cowvd-19
caridem.c by oroviaing treatmen:
NHS pat

arr ed out,

‘or ron-Covid-19

=nts wral otnerwise Cou Not have been

ard Gur fire natwork wiil give pecple
in rurac commurities acc

oroadvana

cess 10 hign-speed

Business conduct

As Directors aur int=ntion 5 tc behave resporsoly,

toperae tne busress win

Inteqgrity a~d raccordance weth tré hich starasads

N

ermedinisaaers

ol QVEIMANTE SXDRC

TLICKT @S DUrs Ouf imtention rough our business

strategy wotln
sectors and work with otFer businesses that shar

G onpages il wo 14) s to operate in

ou” ValLes

Business ethics and governance
The Boarg s responsibie for ersuring that the
aNG |z varous businesies are

e with the aw and

I
0
-
o
C
O
D
O
3
(\
9
C

appicaole
in adherenc

tory reqrmes, and

oedt practice for the

rolevart ingusiry This mnciuges reviewing 1mterng!
conuols, eNzanng tat there i3 an appropr ae
calance of =<illt 3ng exparence represenied on g

dricg trat the Ainarciz

StFmMents

A

ftne state of affars of the
rdatal can be founc 0 the statement
ropage 29 Inine year

no areas of concern have oceen

Employee, human rights, social and community
issues, environment policy and anti-corruption
and bribery matters

The Board's policy or employes, ~uman rghis,

socal ana corrunity 25LES

(7

Vironrent polc:

ama ant-corruption and bn‘::ery matters s discussedd

1 ihe Direciors’ Report o page 28 The Board
cuvely oromales a c

Sroorate cu ture hat 1z gazed

a
o erical valles and behaviours.
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Group finance review

Review of 8nancis! statements

The purpose of thus report is o provide additiona. tthe share pnce and rmay not refect changes in the
explaracory irforration on tne firancial staterments, 1 fuli market value ©f assels or Dusinesses owned by
Iry reasunirg cur performance, the fAnarcial ! the Group.
measures that we use inciude thinse that nave been : ‘
) o { A nurnber of acquisitions were mada durirg the
derved from cur reported resulls in ordar o : o
Toyearn ircluding nine operational reserve power sites,
elirrnate factors that distort year-on-year : e it
‘ 1 awaste to energy site under consruction, a
comnanisons. Thase are cons dered ron-GAAP : . G
1 oconsruction ready wnd farm e Australia and
financial measures. H ‘ "
D seventaen sotar rocftop sites under construction
A reconciliztion of these to the financial rezuits can ! Shortly after the year end, in July 2022, we sola
be found in note 28 of the nates to the financial i Darngton Pont, a large solar ste 'n Australia.
slaements oL .
. i To support continuec expension, we had Suilt up
The francal staterments show assets at cost, as such © cash reserves af year enc of £256m which Incluced
they do not reflect the furare vatd ha\ we expect 0§ alarge cash inflow of £97m from placing extarnal
carive from tnese busirasses, To that extent Porefinancing in Darlington Point prior to sale.
accourt ng performance may d Ffer materaly from
{restated) Movement
2022 2021
E 000 £000 £'000 %%
D*verur 711,830 425,302 286,528 67%
194,916 104 036 87%
47,604 (22 663} 310%
360,901 385 512 (24,6115 (6%)
Cash 256 415 172,478 53,937 49%
Net debt 7’93 169 699 440 §272% 3%
Net assers 2 219 448 1 887 842 332,607 18%
Financial performance £425m) wrich was predomiranily driven by a 84%

Cwverall, the
£47 6~ for the year ended 30 June 2022 whchisa

Group has reported a prodt before tax of

£70.3m improvement on the pricr yaar (2021

£22 7m loss restaied). Overal, EBITDA mcreased by
87% to £155m (2020 £104m restated), whcn s
primarily due to inCreased energy generation as well
as Increased energy prices,

RevenLe ncreased Dy 2 2687m to £712m (2021

‘Earnings before interest, tax, deprecanon and amaortisation

increase in reverue within odr erergy division Thws
growth is two fold, increased energy generat or
from naving cwnad/operated one of our biormass
plants for the full year and a large so.ar plant in
Australia reacning commissioring, and a sigmficant
INCrease It average energy prices over the year dus
Lo the rrismatch between supply and demand,
exacerhazed by the ongoing confict in Ukraing
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Reverue growth was sicngest in our energy

division but we 550 saw a marked improvemen:

reverue frorn our retremrent willages This part uF

our Business nac rebounded well from the
A

‘ockdowrs requirea by the Cowid 19 ga-demic

resnorce, selling 41 units

the year {an ircraase of
52% creasing ir revenue of £757 o
E?'” 4rn QOgl £i2. 7.

tG grow other pars of the busness,

nses for e year were in ineg wir

our expectancrs, with (N0 INCrease prmany criven

by ncreased operaling Costs in cor fibre division as
L ~as expanded
secure Improved RIms Sver ihe past bwo years has

cortrnibuted 1o & decrea sosts of £72.5m

0 £33 6m 2020 E381

Imcladed i trhe resalts th s year 15 a oroft of £25%71

recogn sed on the sale o twia o wind farms in Finland
and a reatzatcn of 21 6m of deferred consideration

on solar sites sole N prav-Ous years

Financial position

Continiued sharenc der imerest and irvesiment has

of EBOEM 12027 E6E3mM resaled)

=0 Dy Eléiﬂn. refiering the reaucron b

b

se 1 work i progress

~CJ3E Cu ldrg drasicns. Gur can

voend et 37 June 2022

Of the casn nelo at year end, £221m was held in
2 nd hbre subsicianes,
wrera trere are a numiber ¢f construction ana

nirasiructure proy

IS Unoer way, recuining cash 1o
ne readhy ava lacle ‘or stage payments due i tre

121 £567m restated;,
rorunber onth
e acgu.siton of some

C C
pbusinesses Acmilred GUELN s, for example

rerowanle erergy sites, often have a market vae

reflectng

N excess of ine company's ret a3sets,
thair relianle future :rcome strearmns. ACCount ng
convenion requ res trnat ony identifiasle assers ars
5o the accounts

nariec o the baignce sheel

carnot record the na ance of the additora: market

ture orohtz that sites

vaile wnich Nwwprs 3 The fu

additicral value in
csefts themselves (suck
goodwil

Pt Sifﬂphc the market vawue C»‘ the eﬂergy

gererat or ~y operational

of future exoecied

”Oly buy na taroible aszes

We pay

re wh chomay

dtaroines

dualy be wrien o, tyaically

G
5 e, a5 excedted ratumns are sl
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Sector performance
Energy

As economic activity and glooal
throughout the year, so too did wcle

prices, driven by movemeants in commaodity prices,
witch resulted in the overall inCrease nrevenue

axrmad aCross our energy sites These
ors have rasulted in

8% to £553m (2021 £322mi

Correspondirgly, EBITDA also increaz
L266m (2021' £126m restated! re tect

significart inCredse i erergy revenu

operating costs increased by £130m o £327m

A A R Rt 8 Ay e et s T

Biomass
Landfitt Gas

Reserve Power
Solar
Vind

Total

derrann increased
sale energy

an increase n revenue of

B . es vmatamnamgeentama

markat

Sy 112% to
ng the
e Overall total

12021 £196m restated), partally driven by increasad
site costs where £120m was incurred at our
biomass sites and £93m at cur reserve power sites

fre prnices for raw materials have incra
average, by 69% due o ar increase 1N e suoply
costs. The combined cost of sales o
power and big ed oy E110m t©
C227m {2021 167 It should be noted that the

resgrve

Aty 1S ncreas

revenue generated by the biomass an
power wites increased by £192m durmg the year to
353m (2021 £182m)

Fy2o22 FY2ozl fyzoz2 FY2021
Production Production External External
{MWh) {MWh) Availability Availability

s one - 3855;3% W\M.wa.;is% \wc;;%
240,226 256,026 97.9% 70%
403,355 141,086 94.2% 92 0%
554,858 517,112 97.7% 06 C%
851,214 831.24 90.5% S31%
3099650 2 sa’z”dis”’ -
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Healthcare

Healtcare operations
2ozl £42 ) to
reflectng the mipact of increa

o

—crriouted £46

Group revenuss 1or the year
sed revenue in
Rargeford. Saes ¢

vitlag

of apartments at the retiremenr

required by the Covid-19 pardemric response,

seiing 41 units 1 the year lan increase of 52% frorm
oy £7.6rm 0 £20 2m

2“2‘ ard increasing -
21 £12 7

eveEnue

Lending

Revenue frorm lendir g decreasea oy £14m ©

021 & smaller zverage

{2021 ES7r) promariy due to
loan Lok for 2022, which ¢

e strearn for the year Tmc otal l 2an ook
reduced oy 5% 1o £35¢
£38B6m Tris red

cash o ne avalanle for

Bl At the year end 20721
11 the ioar book #rabies
ies across ofr

UCTIO
opporunt

sectors within the |

ve repounded well from the inckdowns

ulted N & decreazed

er

Group nclodirg acguisitions ana

onstruztion The make-up of the loar boox Fas

nifted shghtly where we have 1ssued a hgne
e

rnumber of sma'ler lo
sector, as well 25 mcere larger ioans 1In tre
y\

develspment sector and the cornmercial sector

EBITOA ‘or the lerdirs dvision ge
of £8 7 from
year This

a grofit of rearly £2min the prior
movernect ref.ects

creased (03 05

z provision of E25T i

e iean Boo< agamst (Gans o reserve Dower 5 tes

3_
i
<
)
o
g
o
o
[ )
3
3
o
\J
M
™
L
WO

rowas provided
Zlfn e pricr year
Fibre

As g relatvay new divizsicn,
are mn the cudd o

Jstoraers to ther retwarks 2y 30 Jone

The fore butinesse

e ard are startrg

=
o Sior Rad oLl pasies sves 155008 homes

althcare loan of £14m

CIVISKIN GeG oUrs ia rOe CPeraing Sxnenses as tne

rcoeratons and devecp
mrarket presence. Overait re division reporied an
EBITDA toss of £E554m (2022

isIn Lrie with expes

businasses scale the

_E23 S loss), which

ctations ana refiects ™1

(M

developrnents: siage of the dvision,

Az we buld these networks cut, the assais will be

rec c:msed or the ha.ance shest at cost wh'on

cannot include futare vaiue which is ax
generated as the assets have besn internany

garerated T different o the share once wnere
tre future value expected 10 pe ganerated from the

nclLded

[S¥]
(%l
e
o]
~
A
%)

Home building
Eiivia Homes was acaured 10 May 2822 and ras
1a

therefore haa imitad ‘repac or tne financ

cerormance duang tre year The basiness 1s
forecast to dedver 278 revende 270 ES Srr:

ded 20 June 2

Funding and liquidity
Our straiegy 15 < secure ong-lerm financ

O wve levels fromn maiestrea Danks o

erhiance returmns orn oJr rengwacle ef"ergv

busneises At yes e

nCing with E/—Ain" o

Thiz enzbies U

marker coraders to have stable cra

Js 10 acquire pusinestes that tre
racresstos

w
w
H
3

as pred ot
QoVESIrment neerives

COSt Dase, revenue sirearns,
or prover techro

eI ThaT W Eroul
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the current inter

Lrate volaulity We continually
review financing arrangements to ensure that they
are cornpetitive and optmised for tne needs of the
busiress. To ensure cash s managed inan agile
manner, we maintzir a flexble inance faalty

Wi zan pe drawn down or repard to meet
immediate busiress needs

Looking ahead
Ihe Group has rebourded well from the effects of
the Cowd-19 candemic and has outperiormed
expectaticns. Whlst the current ecoromic outlcok
is one of challenge and urcerainty, we anticipate
mir.mal impact on our results due o the

t base, and
essentia. nature of our activites, Coupled witn the
L up across the busingss

predictacte revenua streams and cos

dwersfication we nave bul
we gre postiored
tmes ahead.

strangly for these turbutent

We continue to pay particular attention o the twin
chailenges of rsang interest rates and surging
rflation -~ poth 'n terms of tend:ing and portfolic
maragement These trends impact ail areas of the
Group's bhusiness and are likely to remain for the
foreseeable future, <o we reman discighned in our
rvestment approach, continmuirg 1o montor the
situaton carefully and taking a prudent approach o
any currens and emerging nsks.

We are positive about the conunued cpporiunity
for growth and cortnue to oelieve nat tne
business 15 pos noned weil to take advantage of
future grow:h opgortunities across
areas Energy, lending and house building
operatiors are wel estaplished ir the market and

its core business

continue 1o make excellent progress with robust
performances in tre new financia: year inJane wit
oJr planned strategy, since the year end we sold

large sciar farm n Australia for a small profit, with

proceeds beng redeployed into new coportunities

Deployment nic fkre continues o rell out in ing

with expectations and the Group has now passed

rnare than 150,000 harmes by our fibre retworks
Sales acuvity in sur Peaithcare divsion remains

e

strong, witn nearly 40% of annual sales bucget

aiready competed or reserved across all sites as at
tne enc of Septerrber

Annzunced witnim the auturmn staterent as part nf

the 2023 Finance Bill, the UK Covernmeant wili

enact a 45% windfall levy UElectricty Generato
Levy" or "EGL) on wnolesae energy market

revenues in excess of £75/MWh. Tris s expect@d o
apply o the Group from 1 January 2023 1o 21
March 2028, The exact legisiation will be publizhed
20727, but basad on the imital
re.ease an mpact anailysis has been performed

as at 30 Septemnber 2022 We estimate the :mpact
to be & drop in valuation of approximately £45m
for the sites affecteq, which contributed to a

2 Op decrease in tre share price to 177.0p n
Cecember 2022

in rmid-Decenmrber

We expect to generate strong operating returns
frorm our estabushed divis-ons for the corming years,
in adaition to the anticipated outflows for our
corzvuction phase assets. Tre heatheare and

fibbre diwvisions are well iN their buig phase in ine
with our long-term strategy and we anlicipate
strorg raiurns ovar the next five to seven yoars
LUpon Maturity

PS Latham
Drrector
16 Decerrber 2022
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Directors’ report for the year ended 30 June 2022

The directors present their report and the audited consolidated financial
statements of the Group for the year ended 30 June 2022,

H i
Fora summary of ne Groop's results, refer o e i The Group's objectves and pouces or finanda rsk :
Group inance review o page 23 i omanagement roiuding nformanon or tne !

- ‘ ., excosure of tne Grous 1o cregir risks, Hauidity nisks
fhe directors have not recommendan payment of :

\ N3O TIEKEt FISKS are 3et out N ngte 21 7o the
adindend (2021 £ > <

finarcial statements, Trie Group's prncpal risks are

w
Q

. 1ocet cutin the straeg'c report or gage 16
: ;
The directors af the Company who were in ofice : 3
j - PR oo L - RN s |
durng e year gnd up to e date 07 sigring the : {
) - 1Az permtied by section £14¢ (U7 of tre Compan.es ;
financial starerments wers: ook - - N ]
TOACT 2006, the direttors Fav
e | L :

PS Latmam onformaton reqaires o T
KJ Willey Popy Schecus 7 of e La :
(J Wille : ;
P Companies and Grouss (ACCoLnts ana Resort !
s e H - L .
PG Barlow I Regulators 2008 in tne sirateqic rence:, :
: ;
T Arthar tapported 1 July 2022 '
o tre grnaccial P oThe Board recognises that & corporate culture :
o : 3
tocased or soura etica values and tehay ours € an H
i oasset The Group enceavalrs o concuct its %
AN N Ioousiness wkn iriegrily, o & ethical profass onal !
Refer to the Strateqic Soport on page 8 and reznonsidle manner, treating cuwr employees !
Pocustomiers, suonaers and parers with courtesy :
. i snd respact. i
Refar to the Strateqic Report on page 12 '
: . T TR T s Ty i

R v Aoplicatiors for

: - . . o ven ful are )
Refer to the ton 172 staterent on page 21 i armgven full al ;
Povacerces, naving regard o trer nartic E
Toarzanmuet. Shou i

Downe nitre G

>
»)

Tade to retan ther n employment giving

atermatve ranr g as “eCessary
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Directors’ report for the year ended 30 June 2022

We fuily realise that our employees wish to be
inforrmea and —onsuited on matters affecing their
work and to be mvelved in protiem-solving affecing

treir owr areas of imterest and respansibibity

Tre Group is Armly committed 1o a polcy of good
communication at all levels and we aim w establign
a clrate which concartly encourages the open
flow of information and ‘deas Presently tris
inciudes monty tearn driefings at 3 local tevel and
the pLbicatior ¢f montiy xey performance

]
s3]
3
o]
Bl

Ind Cators covering cutput, operatng costs and

nealkih ang safety.

The Group has in olace ar agreermert with Oclopus
Investments L'mited o provide servicas 1o the
Groun coverng ocerat.onal cversight,

adrrinistrat or, company secretanial and cormrpany

accounting

The 3oard adopted a formal environmental, social
and corporate governanice ("ESGT) policy or

30 Septemzer 2020 The Group recoqgnises the
need to conduct its Businegss, ina manne” that s
responzible to the environmert, wherever possible,

As a low energy user, the Company 1as elected not
to disclose data ¢n its energy and caroon usage.
Fern Trading Limued 15 the orly Company in the
Group that meets the reporting cniteria ana
therefore no irformanon s provided for the Group

as a2 whale

The Group's has an Arti-Bribery Policy whicn
introduced
compliance with the Bribery Act 2010 and o ersure

ropust procedares o ensure full

that the highest standards of professianza: etrucal
conduct are mainained.

In accordance wth the recomirnendatiors of The UK
Corpcrate Goverrance Cade, the Board has
considered the arranigemenrts ir piace 10 encourage
siaff of the Group or manager of the Group to raise
concerms, 1N confidence, within the'r organisation
about possible impropreties in masters of Ainancial

s satisfied that adeguate

reporking or ot er rmatiers
arrangements are N place o allow an independent
investigation, and folow-on acton where necessany,
1o take place within the organisation

We are committed to acting ethically and with
integ-ity ir all our business dealings and
relatiorships and ¢ implementing and enforcing
effective systems and controls to ensure moadern
slavery 15 not taking place anywhere in cur own
business or1n any of Our supply chains, consistant
with our ochgations urnder tne Moagemn Slavery Act
2015 We expect the same high standards from all
of our contractors, suppliers and other business
partners As part of our contracing processes, we
expect our supplers to comply with the Modern
Stavery Act 2015

O a e W o ©
- i PR R

The directors are responsible for prepanng the
Arnual Report and the financial statements in
accordance with applicable law and regulation

Company law requires the directors o orepare
Fnancal ssatements for gach fnancial year Under
that taw the directors have prepared the Groug and
Company financizl staterments in accerdarce with
Urited Kingdom Generaliy Accepted Accountng
Pracuce {Urited Kirgdorm Accounting Standa-ds,
comprising FR% 102 "Trhe Financial Reporung
Stanoard applcakle in the UK and Kepublc of
ireland”. and agplicanle waw) Under company law
the directors must not approve the financial
staternents unless they are satisfied !at they give a
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Directors’ report for the year

true and far view of tne state of 2 al

alr
anid Cernpany ard of the orofit or b;z of t1e Growp
and Compary for that peroc.

financal stawerrer

N prepanng e
tne drectors are

« ctate whether applicab.e Jrsted Kingdom
Accounung Stardards compr.eng FiRS 102, have

e followed, subject 10 ary materal departures

(o)
i

disciosed and explained 1n the finans.al

arE reasoranie ana prudent, ard

oresume that tne Crcur and Company wiil
cortinue in bus:r
The cirectars are slio responsibe for safeguarding

£ vl

the assets o the Groug ar d Cormpany and herce
for taking reasonatle steps for the creverticr anc

geracticon of fraud ard other irreguiarities

The direciors are respons't'e for keeping adeauate

ACCOUnTng records thaa are sufcient 1o anow and

™
=
o
Qo

i tne Group and Company's transacticrs and
iscloze wit~ reazonable acouracy at any time the

narcal poston o

T o
[-l'!

of the Groun anc Comipany and
w0 ersurs that the firancial stat

comply wh the Companies Act 2008

enable them gMments

nded 30 June 2022

2 Art'ces of Asscciancn, the
which 2
G third-party indeminity prowision as

\
ve the oenefit of an inderrm:

cect’'or 234 of the Comuoarees Act 2006

City was in force throughout the iast

ar ana s currently 1o forge

at the date the

e drect there is no relavant

It InTormanon of v

s <o far asth Or S aWare,

Gl the Groun andg

Comipany's auctors are unaware, and

o tnsy Rave taken al at ey ougrt

10 have taxen as a direcior in order to make
tremselves aware of any re evant aucit

informat on and to estab. sk that e Graus and

Comuoany's autiors are aware of thal .nforma

This confSrmiation s given ard

maccordance with

Ernst B2 Young Lo Faving beer appentea 'n 2022,

nave Noica te reappoirted

ted ther w llimgness to
2 o;;-osed foor re-

for ancther term and wili b
C

aonointment in accordance with secuon 485 of the
Compacies Aot 2006

~oowas aceroved by the Board of
16 Decermper 2022 and zigred o its

PS Latham
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Independent auditors’ report to the members of Fern Trading Limited

Opinion
We have audeed the 9nancal statements of Fern
Trading Lirrited ['the Parent Corrpary’) and its
subsiciaries the Group') ‘o the year endeg 50
Jung 2022 winich comrprise the Group Statement of
Cr)more'ﬂens:ve Income, the Group ard Parent
ompany Balance Sheet, the Group Statement of
»aﬁh Flows, tne Group and Parent Staterent of
Changez in Equity and the related notes L tc 29
inciding a summary of sigrificant accounting
ork that has
Die law

policies. The financia. reporting framew
Leen applied in therr prepacation 1s apploa
and v ited Kingdom Accountirg Standards
inciLding FRS 102 "The Financial Reporting
Stangarc apolicable n the UK ang Repubtiic of
Ireland” (Unitea Kingdom Generaily Accepied

Account' ng Praﬂﬁpp)
In cur opirion, the fnancial statements

« give a true ard fair view of the Greug's and of the
Parent Cornpary's affairs as at 30 June 2022 and
of the Group's profit for the year than erndec,

« have been properly prepared in accordance with
Urited Kingdom Generally Accepted Accouniing

Practice, and

* have been prepared in accordance with the
requirements of the Comoanes Act 2006,

Basis for opinion

We conducted cur audit in accordance with
international Standards on Auditing (UK} (15As (UK))
and applicable law. Cur responsibilities under those
standards are furtner described in the Auditor's
resoongitilities for the audit of the francial
saternaents section of our report. We are
independent of the Group in accordance with the
ethical requirerments that are relevart to cur audit of
the Frarcial statemerts in the UK, inciuding the
FRC's Etnical Stardard, and we have fulhllea our
other etnicat responsibiities in accordance witn
fhese requirements,

A ‘ﬁ\rﬁ

We televe that the audit ev dence we have
obtained is sufficiert and appropriae o provide 3

I3

asis for cur oginicn,

o

Conclusions relating o golng conaern

lements, we have

5

auditing the iinancial stz
concluded that the directors’ use of e geing
concearn 2asls of accounung in the preparaticn o°

the Ainancial staiements s aporopnae

sased on the work we have performed, we have

e

ol idenufieg any rmateral uncertainties relaf.ng to

avents or cond tions that, ndividually or coHectlveiy,
may rast significart doubt on the Group and Parent

ab lity 1o continue as a going concern

‘”\

Moany's
ra perncd of twelve montns frorn when the
ancial statements are authorised far 1ssue.

Our responsibilities and the respons bilities of
the girectars with respact to gong concern
2 descrnibed in the relevant seclions of this
repart However, because not all future events or

ent is 2ot a

o8]
=

conditions can be predicted, this statemr
guarantee as to the Grouc’'s ablity 1o continue as a

goirg corcarn

Cther information

The other information comprnses the informaton
included in the arnnual report, other than the
Ainancial statements ana cur auditor's report
thereon, The directors are responsihle for the otner

inforrnation contamed within the annual report.

Cur opinion on the financial statements does not

cover the other information and, except to the
axtent otherwise explicitly stated ir ths report, we

of assurance conclusicn

Q.

O NCL express any form
heraorn.

ot

Our resooncibility is to read the otner information
and, 'n aoing so. consicer whether the other
information is materially inconsistent wath the

fnancial statements or our knowledge obtamed in
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Independent auditors’ report to the members of Fern Trading Limited

the coarse of ine auait or otherwise apoears o beg 1 v certan disclosures of Drectors’ remuneratior j

miaterially musstated If we gentify sueh materal specihed by law are 7ot made, or

INCors.stencies ar apgarent materiar m sslaterrents ) . . . ;
Poeowe have oot recewed sl the informatior and |
we are required to detersring wnether this grues rise ! Slanatians we requice for Faudit
' i - e NS We T e 1or Gu I

o a matwrial misstaternent in the fina~cal

- S tremse ves sied on the work v : .
staternents tremse.ves. I, ba M the waork we ! Responsibilities of directors |
kave performed, we conclude that there s a : ‘ !
Az explained more fully in the Directors’
matenal misstaterrerd of t-2 other informration, we 3 - !
respons Dilit es siatement sel out on o3 : :

are reguirad fo report that fact : )
i 30 the Cirectors are responsib.e for the precarat o

We rave notring o report ir s regard I oof tre firancial siaterments ang for bene satisfied :
: ) L ) |
I othat they give a rue and far view, and for such H
fwai . T 3B 0w : . . i . :
Upinions on other matiers prasoribed Ponternal co Directors geterming is
s Feman - . . .
by the Companies Act 2006 I necestary o enabie tre preparation o Anancal ‘
: :
I our op.mon, oased or the work undertaran « I ostaterrents trat are free from materia !
the course of the audit, Pomisstaierment whether due to fraua o orror §
_: H
. ; In creparing the §
: i
report for the Toars responsioie for i
P Paren: Corrpary’ c :
consistent wilth 1ne fingnaal statermerts, and I ocongern, dieciosirg, as appiicab e, maters relaterd
. ) . P oto going concern and using e goirg concern i
« the Strateqic repor god Directors reno 1 have : b g Jergeo '
2y i ‘ ¢ onasis of accountitg un.e !
geen precared 1 GCCorrance with ag : ‘
tontend 1o Lqu date the
egal reguirements :
: COl’r"pd”‘" Of tO Cease operations, or Fave No {
« 4 e st alternatve bt 1o do so E
Blatiers on which we are reguired to i realstic alternaty Lo S0 ;

regort by exception : . s eyies . .
P g Auditor’s rasponsibilities for the audit

‘ ;@mhaﬁmmcmis*ﬁam 2rnis

Ir the taht of the xnowle i

—
Lo

the Group and the Parent

o
)
s3]
e
Q
3
]
i

.
7 :

‘ Our chjacliives are 0 Gblain '8asonan.g stsLrance !

ey rorrent optaned in the course of the aoo, !

Poatout whetrer the LW'Wa'“’ sl slatemenis as a whaole

we ngyve notidentfies matenat misstatermenis in

the Strategic report or Diveciars report. are free from maer al rissiaternent, whatrer due
HS eI report o iSton o]
to fraud or eror, and 1o issue ar audior's report

We nave Mo

that includes our Spinion Reasonadle assdrancs is
follow mg matters in relation & wh o the a ~igh evel of aszurance, batis not a guaranes tqas
Companes Act 2008 requres s o r2port 10 you o an audit concuctes

Calways de

M ou” Qp'ﬂwD?"ﬁ

¢ GUEqLEIT aTooLrtng recoras mave rot pean kepr i
or retarns adegusie o0 U sualt Fave motoeen ‘
recey roT Gracoret ~ol vigh

bt !

o the Farent Corrpany firanc : 1:
|

: ‘

~agregmert w i the accourting records an : i

M I

ETLITT O




3 | GOVERNANCE

Independent auditors’ report to the members of Fern Trading Limited

Explanation 23 2o what exlent the
audit was considerad capable of
detecting irregularities, including
fraad

frreqularites, including fraud, are .nstances of non-
ns. We decign
outined

compliance wih iaws and regulatio
proceciures 10 e wath cur responsibilities,
ahove, to getect irregularives incladirg fraud The
risk of not getecting a materal misstaterent due o
fraud is nigher than the risk of ngt deiscting one
resilung from error, as fraud may involve deliberame

rgery or intentionat

concealiment by, for examiple. fo
or through collusi
are capadle of

misrepresentalions, ion Trne
cur procedures
sarites, includng fraud s detaiied

for the

extent to whicn
detectng irregu
below However, the primary resoonsibitity
i detection of fraud rests with baoth

the ertity and

prevent.on and
those charged with governance of
rManagement

Our approach was as follows:

« We obtaimed an understanginrg of the legal ard
are applicable to the
the most significant
ework (FRS

reguiatory frameworks that
Group and aetermineg that
are those that refate 1o report.ng fram
102 and the Companies Act 2006

« We understoad how Fern Trading Limitec s
comolying with those framewaorks by making
enquires of ranagemsnt. those charged with
governance and thase responsible for legal
and compliarce procedures as to any fraud risk
framewark within the entity, ncluding whether
a formal fraud risk assessrnent < completed. We
cormborates our enguines through review of the
following documentanion or perfaormance of the
following procaedudres

« obiaining ar unoersianding of entity-level
controls and consider.ng the nfluence of the

control environment,

» obtairing an urderstanding of poticies and
procedures in place recarding corrphance
with faws and regulation
cornpliance wth such
and erforced, obtan
managemert’s process for ident fying ar
resgonrding 1o raud risks, includicg progra
established o address risks
stherwise prevent, deter and

Nz, inciuding now
colicies s monitored

g anureens andimg of

ard controis
identified, or ¢
getect fraud, and now sanior maragernent
monitors those

programs ard controls;

+ review of Coard meetirg minues n the pencd
and up to date of signing.

ed tre suscepticility of the Group's
fnancia. statements to matenal misstatemert,
nciuding

discussion within the audit tearn which

We ascess

how fraud mignt occwr by nolding a
ncluded

identiiicat.on of related partes

s understanding tre Group's cusiness, the

control enviroriment and assessing the nnerant
risk for relevant assertiors at the significant
accourt level ncludimg discuss.cns with
rmranagement to gain an understanding of
those areas of the iinancial statements which
were susceptible to fraud, as sdertified by
management, and

. nsdered the controls that the Group has
tabl'sred to address nsks identfied by

the entity ar that cthiervwise sesk (G prevent,
deter or detect fraud includirg ga‘ning an

understanding of the entity levei controls and

that the Grodp applies,

pohcies

Based on this understanding we designed cur
edures o identfy

wizh such laws and reculations

-compliance
DOur procedures

audit proc non

invalved testing of journal entries tarcugh
Journal analytcs tools. with focus on manual

T bburhiih i

it

eh
b

et

B3

¥
Rl
3




¢

3

o

GOV RNANCE

Independent auditors’ report to the members of Fern Trading Limited

Jjournals, targe or unusual transactions, or journals
meeting our defined risk criteria based on our
understanding of the business,; tested accounting
estimates for evidence of management bias,
enquiring of members of senior management
and those charged with governance regarding
their knowledge of any non-compliance

or potential non-compliance with laws and
regutations that could affect the financial
staternents; and inspecting correspondence,

if any. with the relevant licensing or regulatory
authorities.

A further description of our responsibilities for the
audit of the financial statements is located on the

Financial Reporting Council's website at
www.fre.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities. This
description forms part of our auditor’s report,

[P 5
wAv o fdninS e ¥

NSN3
Ta,urd i

This report is made solely to the Company's
members, as a body, in accordance with Chapter 3
of Part 16 of the Companies Act 2006, Our audit
work has been undertaken so that we might state

3

to the company’s members those matters we are
required tc state to them in an auditor's report and
for no other purpose. To the fullest extent
permitted by law, we do not accept or assume
responsibility to anycne other than the company
and the company’s members as a body, for our
audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we
have formed.

ﬁ\/f\l’%&% /\L.L.JQ

Michael Kidd (Senior statutory auditor}

for and on behalf of Ernst & Young LLP, Statutory
Auditor

Belfast

20 December 2022
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Group profil and loss sccount for the year ended 38 June 2022

et S bR e

'l{wnover . e :
ot of salos
Gross profit

Adrinistrative exoenses
Operating profit/{loss)

Crher noome

Irccme frorm other fiked assel myvestmants

Share of operating profit In joint venture

Pront on disposal of subsdiaries and joint venture

Other rierest recenabide and similar income

Irterest payab
Profit/{loss) before taxation

lax or proht/iloss)

Profit/(loss) for the financialyear -

Attributable to Fern
Minority interest

nd sirnar charges

Naote

2022
£000

(restated)
2021

£000

N

1

711,830
(s10,883)
300,947

~ fe58,251)

... Bass4)

6294
34510

42,696
3,550
5.249

29,533
130

47,604

37,932

A kb et o

425.302
(221.277)
204025
(231844)

(27.819)
9454
449
1755
28568
8g7
(36067

{22.663)

All results relate to continuing actv.ties Note 26 details the o

Giroup statement of comprehensive income for the year ended 30 June 2022

B b I B Y i ERE R TR S S B 6 290

Profit/(loss) for the naﬁciaiyeé

Other comprehensive income
Maovements in cash flow heoges
Forcign exchange gain/(loss) on retransiation of sunsid.aries

Other comprehensive income for the year

Anana

o el B ESNRE DR ST

2022
£000

(restated)
2021

£000

Total combrehensive income for the year

Attributable to
* Owners of the parent

77,985

| eser
... 26546
12785

134,478

30

G101

44,983
(333)

a4850
13638 _
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CGroup balance shest 23 2 30 Junes 2022 :
|

frestated} i

2022 2021 :

hote - E'000 £000. ;

Fixed assets

[¢2)

Intangible gssers 557,708 576739 )
Tang ole ascets B 1,893,430 1581682
INvestmEns 10 35,452 11000
S 2,486,590 2169421 ;
Current assets o o o o S S i
Siocks 12 184,479 94711
HisH i3 623,161 588002

Dabtos (Inciacyg

e after more than

1z 256,415 172 478

86“ 191
Credltors amounts falhng due w!thll’;;ﬂ&  year - 14 o ' !
Ng_t___curr:ap_g assets S ) ;
Total assets less current ilabmt:es
Creditors: amounts fallmg due after ‘mare than one year o 15 !

Provisions for liabilities o 7 (82 620) 7 . (41 372‘ !
Netassets S o 2219448 1387842 |
Capital and reserves
Caled up share capia 15 161,662 142676
364,882 173118
Mergif reserve 1,635,569 1,440,257
63,006 (14.97%)
2,770) 136,049 ‘
2222349 1884121 |
{2,901) 3721

Capltal employed S 2,219,448 1,887,542 ]

Share preriue a

hcfe 26 deals the or or period ad ustrents

These concondated pages 25 to 92 were apuroved by the Soard of directors on i
16 December 2027 an 27 ceha’ by

PS Latham |
Crector

Regstered rumper 12501834
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Campany balance shest as at 30 June 2022
2022 2021
R Now . E000 £000
e s £ AR AR B« A AR 4RSSt et .
i 10 2539,978 2116 366
: ’ C O as3ssve oaeies
Current assets - i
Debtos 13 39,888 50,383
Cast 3t bank ard o hand 11 6,422 14?'5 :
S o - ae310 51306
Cred:tors amounts fall:ng due wnthm one year‘m T e “miEEQ}W (?z 924)7“ .
Net curre“t assets e 45,861 o 28 982 N %
Toi_ulassets_less current liabilities T, ;53; ;.‘;9 2 1/15 348w !
Net assets ' o 2585839 2145348
Capital and reserves
Callec Lp share canita. 18 161,662 149,676 !
SHere: Brermiurm account 364,882 173,118 .
Merger reserve 1,986,457 1,791,145 i
Profit and 1055 accoun: 72,838 31409
Totalshareholders' funds ‘ 7 2ses@s 2145348

Tre Company has eected to take the examiption Lhder section 408 of the Companies Act 2006 not ta
present the Comgary profit and loss account. The proft for the fnancial pernoa dealt with in the financial
swaternents of the Comparny was £226 742 000 (2021 1oss of £157.504,C00)

These financal staternernts on pages 35 10 92 were approved by the Board of directors on 16 December 2022
and are signed on their benalf Ly:

PS Latham
Cirector

Registered number 126016386
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Group statement of changes in equity for the yvear ended 20 June 2022

Called up Share Merger  Cash flow Profit Total Non- Capital
share premium reserve hedge and loss share- controlling employed
capital account reserve account holders' interest (restated)
{restated) [restated) funds
(restated)
£000 £000 £000 £000 £'000 E'OOO‘ E'Q00 ) E£'000
138435 - 1625509 (63.837) 4L165; 1668982 S.570 1.678552
Piorpened - - - 2875 12,828 17703 - 17703
au,astrents note 28]
138435 - 163556G (55,962 {27.356) 1686633 9570 1694 255
- - - - (27.005] (27,005} 14,007 (31,0123
- - 44983 - 44,383 - 44983
~ - - - 233 {333 (233)
Lher comorgsadva
ircarme - - 44983 (I35 446850 - 44650
- 44983 (27,338 17645 14,007, 13638
- - - - 1,821 1.831 {1,842} {11}
- - 195,312) - 155,312 - - -
173,118 - - - 184,803
(444 - - (6,299 6.843)
149674 273,118 1,445,257 (14,979} 136,049 1884121 2721 1,887.842
Balance as at
1 Juty 2023 (restated) 149,676 173,118 1,440,257 (£4,979) 136,049 1884,12% 3,721 1,887,842
Profit for the
financial year - - - - 37,932 37932 {6,622) 31310
Changes in market
value of cash flow - - - 77,985 - 77,985 - 77,985
hedges
Foreign exchange
loss on retranslation - - - - 18,561 18,561 - 18,561

of subsidiaries

s
H
i
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Called up Share Merger Cash flow Profit Total Non- Capital
share premium reserve hedge and loss share- controlling employed
capital account reserve account holders’ interest
funds
) £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £000 £'000 £'000
Other )
comprehensive - - - 77,985 18,561 96,546 - 96,546
income/{expense) for
the year
Total comprehensive
income/{expense) for - - - 77,985 56,493 134,478 (6,622) 127,856
the year
Utilisation of merger _ _ 195,312 _ (195,312 _ _ _
reserve
Shares issued during 11,986 191,764 - - - 203750 - 203,750
the year
Balance as at
30 June 2022 ’161,662 364,882 1,635,569 63,005 (2,770) 2,222,349 {2,901) 2,219,448
Note 26 details the prio- period adjustments
Company statement of changes in equity for the year ended 30 June 2022
Called Share Merger Profit Total
up share premium reserves and loss shareholders’
capital account account funds
£°000 E'000 E’OOQ o £000 £'000
Balance at incorporation - - - - -
Loss for the financial year - - - 515/ 504) {157,504)
Utilisation of merger reserve - - (19r 512) 195 312 -
Total camprehensive income - - (195, 3124 3? 808 157,504
Shares issued during the year 150,220 173118 1986457 - 2,308,695
Shares cancelled during the year {444) - {£,399) 6 84")
Balance as at 30 June 2021 149,676 173,118 1,791,145 31,409 2 145,348
Profit for the financial year - - - 236,741 236,741
Utilisation of merger reserve - - 19%,312 (195,312} -
Total comprehensive income - - 195,312 41,429 236,741
Shares issued during the year 11,986 191,764 - - 203,750
Shares cancelled during the year - - - - -
161,662 364,882 1,986,457 72,838 2 585.839

Balance as at 30 June 2022
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Cironap statement of cash flows for the year ended 30 Juna 2042

b e ® At v T A R o P T S ke £ PP RRRS YT ETE R AR od

Cash flows from operating activities
Frofifiasst for the francial year attninputavie (o tre owners of tne parent

Adjustments for:

=

Tax on orofit/iiosg)
Interest receyab.e and similar rcorme

“harges

o O

mterest payable and cihor Simie

Proft on disposal of sabsidianes 31d jont ventuoe a
Income ram jamt veniure
income from fxed assot invesirrients
Amorts Vard irepa rrans of intangible fxed assels 8
Depreciaiion oF @A 3inie fixed ass»afs g
Nan-cash staf costs
FMovernents on darvatves ard foreign cxlhanae
Incregse ir Slock
lrcreasel/decrease T debtors
ncrease/aecreans! noorediors
for-contns, Urg interssts 5
Tax re pad)
Net;:ash generated from operating activiti
Cash flows from investing activities
Purchase of subsiclary anderiakings net of cash acaured)
Sate of subsienary underakieos a7d joirt veniure:
Purchass of engitne assets
Purchase S irangit ¢ assets
Parchase of unrl stog invesirrens
Sale of unl'sten wrvestroenis 12
Intarest lal &
Incerr e from joint verture
Néi V(V:ash used irl”i'nvesrtwing act”ivitiesr 7
Cash flows from financing activities
FPracecds o inarc rg
3 Erancg
Friaceensy ToIm Ahare EsLe 12

Cancellat'or ¢f shares
Net cash generated from financing activities
Net {decreasej/increase in cash and cash equivalents

W3 CAsT OTuwvaartg at the beginnang of the year i

57 a0 Cash e

Casi'l anﬁ cash equivale;é atrt”he endof the yeaf

2022
£000

esbmmRmas R Rammrca o

37,932

16,294
(130}
33,554
(29,532}
(5,249}
45,762
101,862
3,040
(18,044}
(19,829)
31,022
(173,956)
(6,622)

25858

41,897

52,377)
101,778
(322,446}

(7.222)
{224,203}
105,000

130

- @ssa0l

201,719
(32,319)
(32,013)

203,750

341,137

83,‘94

172,478

243

256,415

{restated)
2021
000

D N e T

[27.005%)

8,349
@97
36,068
(28.568)
(1,755}
445)
34704
34657
5.875
(9,785}
(5.701;
243,374
6871
(4.007)
750

341917

(22198/)
74,503
110457
(875)
129617)
20,133
557

1077
(306.226)
(35,552)
(212676}
184,359
(6,399
(70.268)
(34577)
206,688
387

Note 26 detads the onor periog ad ustmeants
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Statement of accounting policies

Company information

Fern Trading Lirmited (tne Comaany’) s a prvate company amited by shares ard incorporated on 14 May

2020, The company s domiciled n England, the United K'rgdom and registered undar compariy nurmber
17601636 The adoress of the registered office is at Bih Flaer, 33 Holborn, London. Englana, ECIN 21T

Statement of compliance

The Group and mdivicual financial statements of Fern Tracing Linited bave beer prepared 1n complance
with Um =d Kingdorn Accountng Standards, inciuding Finenoast Reoorung Standard 102, Tre Financial
Reportirg Standard applicable i the Uried Kingdom and the Recublic of Ireland (FRS 1027 and the

Compames Act 2006

Basis of praparation of financial statemenis

The finarcial staternents have been prepared 01 a going concern basis, Lnder the nster cal cost conventon,
and Habilites measured at fa:r value, ang,

e accounang standards ir the United Kingdom. The

crsiently throughout the year, are set o. ﬁ eiow.

h

az modifiec oy the recogrition of certain frnanca: assers

oy

accordarce with the Comparies Act 2004 and appica
prirCipa. accounting paicies, wrich have peen applea

ﬁ

Tne consoldated fnandiai statemerts inciude the results of alt supsicmanes owned by Fern Trading Limited
as listed in note 29 of tha annua financal statements Certain compan.es of these subsidiares, which are

listed in note 29 have taken the exerngtion from an audit for the year enced 20 June 2022 permitted by
section 479A oF Cornganies Ac: 2006, In order to allow these subsidianes 1o ta<e the audit exemption, the
parent company bas given a stalutory guarartee, in iine with section 479C of Companies Act 2006, of all
fne outstanding net Labitt.es as at 30 June 2022

ﬂ"wémg CORCern

Grodap's and the Company’s business activities, togetner wiih the factors likely to affectits future
deveu,prmrt performance and position are set out the Strategic Report on pages 4 o 14 The finanacial
positon of the Group, its cash fows, ligudity position and borrowing faclities are described ir the firancial
review on pagas 23 o 27 The principal risks of the Groun are set out on page: 16 to 19

The Directors perform an annual going concern review that considers the Lroup’s ability 1o meelits
financial obligations as they fall due, for a period of at least twelve maonths after the date tnat the financia.
statemerits bave been sigred.

Due to the challenging market congitions management have performeac an assessment (o determine
whether there are any material Lhcertainties arising that coud cast significant doubt on the ability of the
Group ¢ contnae as a going concern. No signifcant issues have been noted and as a consegJderce, the

directors believe thar the Group is well placec 1o marage its business nsks successfully despiie the current
Jncertan economic aut.oox

N 4 31 S{&
il

aim;&'&%‘




4} FINANCIAL STA

Statement of accounting policies

=
-
)
[
I
i)
3
[te}
—

Group’s balarce sheet, profit andg loss and cash
A reverse stress test was performed on

rizks o the Growps Hguicity po
cf revenue ¢

f‘m
ition. Tre v
F45% the Group is atle
due for at t._ast z year fromotre dae

faohties withir: tne Group

Arandin

f
inancial ratics and con .my with certain o

onaby plaus

over e have peer Lsed o assess the coven

AT Z0 June 2022, tre Group nad avislatie r:a-sh of
. ‘

—_

one year Toe Gro

of £S er- payaole in

more then
setautin how 16 Loars arg Borrowngs
Kay accounimg el
economic Gutlook Key estmates Inciode (Canr

decomriss Cng provisions, imparment of good

=

el ot on pages 50 o 51

ecuate resources to conurug m )peatlonat

fus corclusien the Birecicrs have revewead the

flows with spe

e Lase ¢ase forecast wo as

LD SLStar TS cur

of sgrirg these financial siatements whan utits ng e avalaol

ancer the stress test

wiil grd rvestrents, pusinecs combnations an

ssraent of current econeme condtinns a

wstence for the next 12 months Thus, they <
adopt the guing corcerr basic of accouning N prepanng ihe arnual finarcial s

of e uncertanty o ine

nsideratior aven 1o e foliswing

sertaimn wnat scenan

% WoUis res st 10

st erowed even inan urlkely scenario of a significant reducton

iy

=Guring the Groug o reaintan

Theze fnarcial coverants are

v, and, 2t tre dawe of this rep;rt Hale Gfou'p 3in complance witn ail e financal
cenarcs suLoh as & signficart reducitios in ESITDA of 34%
Nt requrer-ents for tne at east the next twewe months ang

o

L2586 ard Feadroor avaran e of 2441 ncluding =
5 due 1o mature in less thar ome year, with the rermairder

L8 facities, repaymen: dates a7 undrawr amowunts are

~ made with consideration awven to tne Current

ecoverablity, vaua:i@n of work in progress,

rd tre mzact on
o et the

CAroup's

nahslar

s higve conclude Group and Comcany nas
SNt e fo

TAdlerments

¢ for qualifying sntities under FRE 102

certain conduons, whch have

FRS 102 aliows a cuasivrg ertty certain disclosure exemptons, subyject it
been compliea with, includng ~othcaion of and ‘

o
Ao obecton o, ne use of exercptions by the Co

agualfyng e
3inciazeg tne

a0 frorm the fnanc alimstrorrent ciscosiares, ecuwred urder FRS 102 paragranits 1138

paragraphs 12 26 105,12 25 as theirforraiion s

Company ey managersnt cersonne. comoer sation, as regu red by =R5 102

rert operaucnal oosts and rreet abl lablutes as they fal.

cenarc, ntre gong concerr penGd.

MEany's
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Statement of accounting policies

Basiz of consolidation

Tre consoldated Frandcial statements irciLae the resuits of Fern Trading Limitad and all its suosid ary
undertaiungs madce up to the same accourtng dare Al intra-group balances, transactuons, income and
expensas are elrmirated in full on conscliaation. The results of subsidiary urdertzkings acaured or disposen
of guring the period are ncluded or excluded from the income statement from the effective cate of
acgusition or d.sposal.

Ali ungertakergs over waich the Group exercises cortiol, peirg the powar to govern tha financial and
operatng policies so as o obtam benefirs frarm treir aztvities, are consolidates az subsidiary undertakings
Whiare a subsidiary has different account'nig policies 1o the Group, adjustments are maae © those

Q

subsicnary Friancial staternents to apply the Grodg's accounting pod cles whnen preparing the consoldate

fnancial statements

Any subsciary underiakings or associates so r acquired dunng the year are incluged up 1o, or from, the

s of change of corfred or charge ©f signficant influer ce respactively.

Wrers the Grolp has writen a put option over shares neld by a non-controting interest, the Groug
cerccognises the non-cortroling interest and 1nstead recognised contingent deferred consideraton liability
wilhin other payabias for the estimated amount likely to be paid to the non-controlling interest on exercise
of those optons The residual armount, representing tne differerce between any consideration pad/payable
and the ron-controlling :rterest’s share of net assets, 15 recognised as goodwill. Moverments n the

est rrated liatil'ty after india: recognition are recaognised as gooawill,

Forelgn currency

i. Functional and presentation currency
The Group finarcial staterments are presented n pound sterling and rounded to thousand

he Compary's functiona: and presentanon curency s pound sterlng ana rourdes 1 thousands.

ii. Transactions and balances

Foreign currency ransactions are transtated into the fuhctionai currency using the spot exchange rates at
th2 dates of the transactions. At each period end ‘Creign currency monetary items are trasslated using the
closing rate Non-rmonetary ‘tems measurac at historical cost are ransisted using the exchange rate at the
date OF the ransaction and non-maonretary items measured at fair valus are measured using the exchange
rate when fa'r value was determmad, Foreign exchange gamns ard osses resulting from the settlement of
ransactions anc frem the transiation at pencd-end exchange raes of monetary assets and liabiltes

denorminated in foreigr currencies are recognised in the profit and loss account.

Al foreign exchange gains and losses are presented in the profit and .oss account within administrative
expenses.

iii, Translation

Tre trading resuits of Group undertakings are trarslated into pounds stering at the average exchange rates
for the year. Tre assets an CE laci ities of overseas urdertakings, incll.ding goodwill and fair value adjustrments
arising on acquistion, are translated at the exchange rates ruling at the year-erd Exchange acjustmerts
arising from the retrarslation of opening net irvestments and from the transiation oF the profits or losses

at averane rates are recognised ir 'Otner comprehensive income’ and allocated 1o non-controlling interest

a5 agpropriate
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Statement of accounting policies

Turnower g

The Grouo operates a numpe: oF classes of bus ness Raverues is derveg oy the follova-

rated by salar farms, wine gereraling sssets, resernve o
!

rthe period anowhich @ s

greerrents, suCh asg the Rengwable
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sverue can pe recogriiec relably, ana itis

: Fp +

CONGITIC beng’ts astonaied witn tne irantacton wih fow 1o 1ne onlty Turniowver :

> far value of the corsideration receved for ne

servnices provided in the rorma.

L ang s srowrn net of VAT urnover 15 recogn

fon he date tne sarvice is

« tending "
Turrove” represeiz arrangemant fees anc irterest on \gans provided o customers, nat ¢
addeaa rax Loan intarest s recogrized or an accrual basis i1 ine with contracibal terrs of the loa-

agrearnant Arangemeant fees are spread cver the life of the loan (o wh.ch tney relate

« Fibe ;
Turrover 15 recogrised &t tre fair value of the coraideration receved “or rternel connectvity ard awred
IT services providea n the narma. Course of business, ena 15 s own net of VAT

oased or the date rhe servoe s orovided,

s House nuloing

Turnover is recogrisea o0 legal completion Of the sale of oroperty lard ang commarcizl spaces Tarmover :
from housrg assocahan CONTacts is recogn sed oy reerence to the value of work completed as a

orcgportigr of the wotal conract valua.

Employes bansfits

The Grous provides a rarge of benefits to employees, incluging annua bonus arangerr.ents, paid holay
arrangamerts and deined contnbul on pens or plans

i. Short-term benefits

TAoT- e cenefts iNciLd Ng holiday Cay ant SIMer 3 rriar non-meon: ¢, e recogrized a8 an

ver] 1

0]

exnerce Inthe penoo 1mwrIth e serv ce s rece

ii. Defined contribution pension plan i
- .

20 ot buter olan s a pens'on ol wnder woich tre GroLe pays fixea conriputions ~to a

The cortrbut cns are recsgns
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Statement of accounting policies

ili. Share-based payments

Cash settled snare-based payments are measured at far value at the balance sheet date The Group
recogrises a lablty at the balance sheet date bated on these fair vawes, taking into account the estimated
number of umits that will actually vest and the current proport on o7 the vestng pencd

Changes in the value of this lab Ity are recognised .n the incorne staternent
The Group nas no aguity-sotiled arrangements,

Finance cosis

France costs are charged to tne profit and loss account over the term of the debrt using the effectve
interest metnod so that fne amaount fhorg Is at a constart rate on the carrying amount, ssue costs are
initially recognised as a reduction ' the proceeds of the ass ted capital mstrument and released o the
profit and loss account over the term of the debr,

Current and deferrad tax

Tax 11 *ecognised In the staterment of incomre and retained earnngs, except that a change atrributab e to an
g

rem of ircome and excense recogrised as other comprehensve income of 1o an item recogrisec directly

in eguity 1§ also recognised N othier comprabensive income or directly in equity respectively,

Tre current ircome tax charge is caiculated on the basis of wax rates and laws that have been enacted or
substantively eracted by the balance sheet date in the countries where the Compary operates and
gererates Income.

Ceferred baanrces are 7eco

-
M
2

niced in rezpect of all iring differences that have onginated but not reversed
xC

by the Balance cheel date, gt that

+ The recogn tion of deferred tax assets s amited to the extent that iz probable that they wll be recoverad
aganst the reversal of geferreg tax liabilties or otner future taxable profits; and

+ Any deferred tax balances are reversed if and wnen all corditions for retaining associated tax allowances
have been met,

Leferred tax balarces are not recognised N respect of permanent differences except in respect of busiress
cormbinations, when deferred tax 1z recognised on the differances between the fair values of assets acgured
and the ‘uture tax deductions avalable for tham and the differences between the far vawes of liabilities
acguired and the amount that will oe azsessed for tax Deferred tax is determined using tax rates and laws
tnat have been eractad or substantively enacted by the halance sheet date

Business combinations and goodwill
Busiress combinations are accounted for by appiying the purchase method,

Thne cost of a business combination is the fair vaiue of the consideration given, liabilites ircurred or

assumed and the egquity instruments issued plus the costs directly attnbutabla 1o the business combination
Wrere control 's achreved in stages the cost is the cons deratior at the date of each transactionr

On zcquisitor of a business, fair valdes are attnbuted to the identifiable assets, liabilites anc contingent

bapilities uniess the fair value cannot be measzurag rehably, in which case the value s incorporated as
goodwill Where the fair value of conungent lanilities cannot oe relably measured they are disclesed
on the same bas's as other contingent liabilities.

96
S e RN




Statement of accounting policies

Goudwill recognises represents the excess of the farr value and arecily ait puiable costs of the purcirass
consideration over tine far values to "he Group's \nterest in tre dentifiaple »et assets, labitias and
contingent ligbilties acqured.

Cr acquision, goodwili s slocated [0 cash-gererating units (ZGU'S) 1nat are expected o benefit from
triz cormbination

Coodwil. s amortised over g expecied uselul life whick 1 determined based on the esumated fespan of

‘5

tne assels acqures Where the Grouo is unab.e io max<e a reliable estrare of useful ufe goodwill is
amortized ovar 3 period rot exce

{

ding tan years Goodwill iz reviewed anc assessed for impairment

inclzators on an anauay pasis and any imoainmentis charged o the crofitand loss

Tangible fixed asset
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CONSTLeT

Where factors, such as tecnnciogical advarncernent or changes in

=0, the res dual value, useful 2 o
el

reflect the new Crcum ces The assets are raviewed fo

carrylsg amount may be mpa red
Ca.ne and oss28 o0 dis
reccon sed witrninm prott or logs.

Intangible azsets

Iriangicle assels are stated at 2ost less accumulated arnorvsatior and accumulated mpa‘mﬂert: G
Arcrization 3 Calcuwaten, Jsng fne straige-lir e raetrod 10 g locae the depretial e amcan:
bz ther resdual valugs over ther gsirmizied usetul ives, as inl.ows

Develcpmrent rgrts reaie o Larm-g consert o build a sear farm a~d a waina farm acqured on acous t o

s&'s are gewrrrined by comparng e proceeds with the Carrying amount and are
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Where faciors, such as cnanges in market price, :ndicate that residual value or useful Ufe bave changed, the
residual vaiue, useful life or amort<ahion rate are arnended prosgeciively to reflect the neyy crcurmstances,

The assets are reviewed for impairmens if the above factors indicate that tne Carrying amount may
ba impeired.

Leases

Atinception the Grouo assesses agreemens that tran tre right 1o use assets The assessment considers
whether the arrangerment 1s, or containg, a lease bas
EE

sfe
ed on the substance of the arrangeme-t and whether
ihe lease should be classified as exther a ira~ce lease or an operating lease

Leases of assets that transfer substantially al the risks and rewards incidenta. to ownersrip are classified as
nance leases are capitalised at the commencement of the lease at the fair value of the

w
L
2]
m
Q 71
DA

a eprfcwatﬁ-d over e shorer of the lease term and the estimateg useful lfe of tre asset
Assets are assessed for imparrment at each reporung date.

Leases that do not transfer all the risks and rewards of ownership are classifFed as operating leases
Baymernts urder operating ieases are charged o the profit and loss accodnt on a straignt-ine basic over the

penod of the lease,

Investmants

The Comnany holas invesiments in a subsidiary at cost less accarmulated impairment losses i an
imparment 1oss s subvﬁuum ly reversed, the Carrying amount of the investiment s ncreased o the revised
ectimate of its recoveralle amount, but only 1o the extent thal the revised carrying amaount does not excesd
the carrying amount that Would have been determired Fad no impairment loss been recognised in prior
perods A reversal of an impairment l0ss 15 recognised in the proit and loss account

L-ash
Cash irncludes cash in hand enc depasits repayatle on demand Restricted cash represents cash for whicn
the Group does not have immediate anc direct access or for which reguiatory o legal reguirerments resurict

the use of the cash

Stocks

Raw materials, spare parts and consumables ara valued at the lowear of cost and net realsanle value. Wrere
necessary, a provision is made for cbsolete, slow-moving ans defective stock. Cost is determined on the
first-in, first-out (FIFO) method

Fuel stocks (MEM and «dtrer) are valued on an average cost Dasis over one to two months ana gravisior for
unusable litter is reviewed rnonthly and applled to off-site stock.

Fuel stock of straw has been vaiued at tre historica. cost per woane of straw. A provsion for unusaile straw
Is dentifies on an individual stack basis and s reviewed monthly Stocks are uzed on a first in, first out
("FIFC") basis by age of straw

tocks of ash at Fibrophos are valued at the lower of cost ang net realisanle value to the Group

Stocks of orogerty developrment work in progress "W-P') are stated at the lower o cost and 12t reatisable
valle, Cost comprises direct materials and, where applicable. direct labour £0s%s and those cverheads that
have been rcurred n Bnnging the siocks (o their oresent locations and conditon
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Al each rencrting date, an assessment 15 rreade forimparmenrt Any excess of the carrying amcun: of
o b, E

a5
stocks over s estmated seling price «ess costs o complete and seil is recagr.sed as animpairment loss

5 of irnparment losses are also recogrisad N the profit &

WORS aTCUTL

Accrued income

Accraed incorme o loars s calculated at the rae of interest zet out in trig [can contracts Energy nacome g
accroed over the penoa In which it has been generated

Deferred income

Deferred noome s recognisec n accordance with the tenms set aut i the contact Deferred ncome s

released to the profit and loss account in tne ceriod to which 1t relates.

Financias!l nstrumaeants

—
1=
ad

(he Grouo has oosen o adopt Sect:on N 22 of FRS I0Z norespect of inarcial imstrments

Financial assals

Bavic firarcal ass nciuding trade and other receivables anc cash anc ba~k baances are initiady

recogn sed at trarsaction price, un.oss the s a finerc g rarsaction, whare ne

transzactior s measured at e present ¢at, Lrtea at a rmarxet rae of interest

re efiect've interest method

Such assels are suns

iently carmen at amort s

AT the end of each reporting pericd ﬁmar Cial assels measared 3t 15t are asaesiea for opjective
evdence of tmpairmert, If ar asset i< impaired the pa\rrﬂeﬁf o33 12 the diffcrence be:weer‘. the carrying
amoun: ana the present value of tre estonated cash fiows discounies at 7o atset's onginar eect ve interas?

e
rgte The impairment loss s recognisea in prost or

Orer firancal aszets, ncloed rg nvestmenrts n ecuity instrurents which are not subz

jont verntures, are nohally rmeasured al far vaue, wheon s nermaily the trassachon
subseouertly carmed at fair value and the cranges in farvalue are recognised inor

s that are not cubicy traded ana whaose fair vaues cannor

=

nvestrien s ety Insiruren

[4}]

reliably are measured at cost less mzairment

Fira azsets are derecogrisen wrer (@) the cortractual nghis to Ire 2250 f.ows from: the asset exoire or
are setved, or (bi substania Iw 3i the risks ard rewards of the owrership of Tre asset are ransferred to
amother party or (2} conol of tie asset has been tgnsferea o another party who has the pracucal abrty
O wr iity sel tha gsser fe an unrelatec third carty w roul mposng aodicoral esnchons
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Cebt instruments are subseguently carrec at amortised cost, wsing the effective interest rate method, Fees
paid on the establishment of taan facktes are recognised as transaction costs of the loan 1 the extent that
itis probable thar some or all of the faciiity will be drawn down. In this case, the fee 15 deferred unlil the
araw-down occurs To the exient there s no evicerce that itis probabie that some or ail of the facility wil
be drawn down, the fee 15 capitalised a5 a pre-payment for | quidity sewvicas and amorused over the penod
of thie facity to which it relates.

Trade payabies are ooligaticrs to pay for gooos ¢ services that have been acgurred in the ordinary course
of bus ness from suppiiers. Accourts payaole are clascifled as current liabilines * paymeant is dug withr one
year or less If not, they are presented a3 nor-current halilties Trade payables are recognised iritialy at
transaction pr ¢e and subseguently measured at armortised cost usirg The effective nterest method.

Francal iabilives are cerecogrised when tre gk uty s extingashed, that s whe the contractuat obligation
is dscharged, cancelled or expreas

Provisions

Zrovisions are made where an event has taken place that gives the Group 2 legan or construcuve cbligation
that probably reguires settlement py a transfer of economic penefit, and a 'ellab e estrmate car be maae of
the amount of the obhgauon

Drovisions are charged as an expense 1o the profit ard loss account in the year that the Group becomes
aware of the obligation, and are rreasurad at the oest estimate art the balance sheet date of the expenditure
raguirad to settle the obiigaton, taking into acount reevant rsks and Jrcertaintes

Hedging
The Group applies hedge accournting for transactions entered 1nto to manage the cash flow exposures of

borrowirgs. Interest raie swaps are held 10 manage the interest rate exposures ard are designated as cash
ow hedges of floating rate borrmowirgs Changes in the fair values of dervatives desgnated 25 cash flow
e

-

i
hedges, and which are effective, are recognised directly i1 equity Ar.y ineffect veness in the nhedging
relationship (being the excess of the cumulative change 11 farr value of the hedging instrument since
inception of the hedge aver the cumuiative cbange in the fair value of tre hedged item since inception o
the hedge) 15 recognised in the profit and lo

The gain or loss recognized in other comprehensive incorne s reclassifed © the profit and oss in
accordance with the cash flows of the hedged item Hedge accountng is discortinued when the hegging
instrument expires, no longer meets the hedging criteria, the forecast transacuon 5 no longer highly
probable, the hedged dabt instrurrent is derecognised or the hedging instrument is terminated

Share capital

Crrdinary shares issded by the Croup are rcacg.‘ ed in equity at the value of the procesds received, with the
excess over naminal value dbeing credited 1o share premidm.

Non-controilling interests

Non-controllirg interests are measured at their proport:enate share of the acquirec’s identifiable net assets
g prap

at the date of acguisition
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Hay &{:i:mﬁmiﬂg udgemants and estimates

The preparation of financiai staternents in complance with FRS 102 requres e use of ©

accounting estimates It also requzre: mManagemen: to exarise ufgm*.eﬂr N appiying the |
c

ccountng pohces. BEstirmates and ludgerrents are continaally eval.

ac
axperience ard other factors, ihc!;d:ng expectatons of future events that are celieved (o be reascn
under ine croamsiances. The key estimates and udgements in prepanrg tnese Mnandial staternenis are

i. Recoverability of loans and advances to customers {(estimate)
Loars and advances o custorrers, pcluding assoc ated accrued income baances, are revewas for

Mparment on a quarterly basis in corsiger rg the nesd for & prov ~enl determ re ther best
estbnate of the expectes future cash flowst on a case Dy case Case As this es:imare reles on a certan

Aumber of assurptions about future evenis wh o rnay dffor mes, rcludinrg the

borrower's atillty to repay nierest and capital due i fuiure per _tnis gives nse 1o judgeTient 45 1o

wrather there iz 2 shortfall petwee the

arrying valde anc the fair uaU% of e debter balance.

Marmagerent 1ote trat provisions against (cans and advances is o crifcal estrmate and Frave tnerefore

serformed sensit vity analysis on the crovisicr. The results of the sensitiviy anayss conc
)‘ ¥ ¥
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of +/- orne per cent .n the arount provides aga:ns: the estimated balaras 3t risk wolld nave resyited »
E36m less/more expenarture being cnarged 1o the ircome statement duning the pennd See note 13 for the

carryinig amolnt of vre deotors and provisions st 30 Jure 2022

ii. Value of property development work in progress ('WiP') (estimate)

Progerty develogrrent W.E is reviewed ‘or irmga rment o~ a penodc bass in corsidenrg 11e recc for 3
orovis or, ranagement defermine their best est mate of the recoveranle value Management engage a0
expert external valuer 1o provide key essumptons about futdre events which may diffe

cutcomes, mcl.d rg property valuztors, rate o—‘ sales and developrrent costs
These eshimates give rnse to Ju igaernent as o whether therg dlak e ‘ carrying value and the

fai- vawie of tre baance a e reviewed trs

assemptons Lsed to determime re vaue of r)romuty develcpme ave observec no changes
performance trat would impact tre valuation as atthe 20 Jure 2022 See ncte 12 for the carryirg amount

of the progerty development Wi

iii. Purchase price agreement (Australian entities) (judgement)
The Grous owns two energy generaiing subsicianes ir Australia which nave enterec Mte ourchase pr
agreerrants (TS in 2012 a~d 2021 Tre PPAR riclude 3 corract for aifferences "CFD" wnereby toe

o the cusicreer pased on the all‘erarces belween a Txed seling price

reect Cf:y sclo o tre Alstraiar erergy mar<e! The arecters beleve the contract 5
;

| for

e ara the CFs iypics

LAS B reverus corratt wirn

iv. Business combinations (estlmate)
The ¢

cost of 3 buzness comg
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v. Decommissioning provision {estimate)

The provision for gecommissioning costs i= measured at management's best estimate of the oresent value
of the experdiure requ red o settle the fulure obligat on to return land on which (inere are operational wind
and soar farms, 1o s ongiral condition The lavel of tne provisions is deterrmined 1o 2 significant degree by
tae estimanion of fuiure dismaniing and restoranon costs, as well as the tnming of dismantierment

Wind Farms (estimate):

tManagemert noete that decorrmissioning provisions 1s a crivcal estimate and ~ave tnerefore parformed
senstvity analysis. The resuits of the sensitivity analysis conclude that a change of +/- ane per cent in the
discoun raie would have resuliea in £2.1m increaze/decrease ir the provision See note 17 for the provsion

recogaised at 30 June 2022, Management utilise extermal experuse to provide an estimated cost to

dismarte anc Fave used a discount rate of 2% o reflett the tmre in va.ue of rmaney ard the nisks specific

to the cbigation.

Australian solar farms (judgement):

Tne Group s required to restore tre leased premeses of

tre solas farm to their oaginal condinon at the end
of the lease term A provision was pravicusly reccgrised, nowever in the current year s jusgement has
been reassessed and management believe the lessor may wish 1o gither take utle of the assets “or either
cortraed use or to realise vaue through seling the assec and as such do naot pelieve that an outflow 5

prabable to settle this restaration cbligaton.

UK Solar (estimate):
During the yaar, a third party performed an assessmert of the base cost of the decommissicning of the

G ¥ 4
Groups JK solar farms, The fndings have resulted in material change 1in the cost estirnate and therefore a

& d
provision has been recognised for the first tme on sore sites The impact has resulted n a provision being
raised for £18m to the balance sheet decommissioring Uabtlity and fixed assets As at 30 June 2022 there is
riey irnpact an the proft and toss. Sites raof affected are addressed below

UK and French Solar {judgment):
Management beliave that given the naturs of these particular aszets, the lessor may wish 1o either take title
of the assats for either contirued use o 1o realise vaiue trrough selling e asses and as such do not

believe at an cutflow s probable to settie this restoration obligation Management will continue to monitor
the situation at each balance sheet date.

vi. Impairment of goodwill and investments {estimate)

The value of goodwili held by the Group ard investments in subsidiary undertak'ngs heic by the Company
it reviewed annualy for impairment. The recoverabiity of these nalances is consdered with eference to the
present value of the estimated futdre cash flows, These calcuations use cash flow projections wh'ch extend
forwara forecast buziress performance together with assumptions surrounding the exoected iife of the
asset, axternally prenared forecasts and valdations, and any adjustmenrts required to the discount rate o take
account of business sk Tre esumated present value of tnese future cash flows s sens tve o the discount
rate and growth rate usec in the calculation, al of which require management’s iudgement. Testing of the
carrying value has been performed during the year, which nas involves several scenaros being modelled
Based on this tosting and tne resultng impairmert recogrised on investments, management belisves there
15 sufficient headroom 0 support the value of goodwill ana rvastiments n subsdiary entities,

<

anagement note that impairment of goodwill ard iInvestments is a crtical estimate and kave thereicre
performed sensittaty analysis on the provision. The results of the sensitivity analysis conclude that a change
of +/- one per cent in the amount provided agamnst tne estimated balance at risk would Pave resuited in

£5 49 less/more exgerdiiure baing chargaed to e income staternert guring the period. See nowe § for
the carrying amcunt of the goodwill and Investmerts at 30 Jure 2022,
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2022
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Analysis of turnover by category

land

Energy cparat ons - <olar, resanve sower and wird

Enorgy operat ors — biomass and landfn
Healthcare cperatiors’
Horme pelding

Tibre ope

2022
£'000

T,

42,408

365,958
223526
45,978
25,034
8,930
711,830

2021

£'000

56,552
179.820
141,826

42,266

R
[#a]
(53]
(@0}

o
he
.L‘ ”
[
=)
o

Analysis of turnover by geography

Lrated Hi

Europe

3

lest of waorld

S

2022

84,433

711,830

23,486

2021

£000
384,799

31,893

2610

425,302

Other income

2022 2021
E'000 E'000
3,550 9454
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2022

Tr:s 1s stated ater charging/lcreditirg)

2022
£000

Amosaton of imtargitle assets note 8) 17,849
impairment of Intangio'e assets (note &) 7,913
Depreciztion of 1ang ble aszets (ncte 95 101,802

Auditors remuneration - Corpany srd the Group's conzsoldated
firancial statements

a5

Auditors’ rernuneration - auddit of Compary's subsidiares 819
Aaditors’ remuneration - non-audit services 246
Additors remuneration — tax compliance services 482
Difference on fore’gn exchange 7,772
Cperating lease rentals 13,783

{restated)
2021
£000

LR s R OO LB AALE ERI AR LB IS R SRR E LR KRR S whunt wnwe e o oda YRR AR BT e i A e S bR uma R YR AR A2 2

37704

84,697
146

1134
513
672

4402
7502

Note #5 getans the prior penod adiustments

O

2022

2021
£'060

s 5 & RSB S v

R T 4 B 3 e

Wages ard satanes 7 85,432

Socal senunty costs 7.041
Other pension Costs 3,233

95,706

41,383
3,809
1676

46868

an expense for the defined contribution scheme s shown in the table above,

The monthly average number of persons employed by the Group during the year was:

2022

The Group provides a defineg coriribution schemes for its employees in the UK. Tre amount recognisec as
p

2021

o Number Number

B 1,032 695

Addmiristration 631 343
Drrectors 3 3

1,666

1050

The Company had ore employee other than Directors during the penad endead 30 June 207

2 (2021 none}

i
H
i
i
i
!
i
i
i
!
H
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Lrrourme

2022
£'000

B T

STCLSTOPRE

176

EIrRE S

2021
£000

163

R

During the year no pension corntrioubons we-e made i resoeat of tne directors 2020 none

The Groun has no other key r

£ niumber of subsicianes of the Gro

emrployess render sery

vauation of the undertying subsiGary

X

reportng dae ard ar tne se

of experse recogrised akas into
vest under the

D operate a cash-
s i excrange for casn, the

et date Tne fair
accou-t the bes,.

service ard performance

nanagermren: (2021 none).

settled LTIF to cualifving emp

=

sloyes

amount of which s defermuned by ref

Pt GWares rade is

The ‘ar vawue of the zbility {2

vaue is recogmised over the ves

ce conditions ander'ymng eac award granted,

Cash-settled share-based payment transactions with employees

3 bmcmra

Granted auring the penod

Closing outstanding balance

2022
Number of
awards

T TR B IR Y b £ P SRR S

1,914,751

1,763,563

3,678,314

rrg penod. Tne
availaple estirnate of e nurniger of units

erence

Tezaslr

S expe

2021
MNurnber of

awards

R R

1 640, OC)O
774 751
1 914 751

The 1otal charge ‘o the year was £3,

Lo o

Interest receivable and similar income

terest on Darv Lalanices

123,000 (2021 £1 324508 and &

ded w imin creditors greater than one year {21

at the 30 Jure 2022

2022
£'000

S R

130

there was 2

2021

£'000

Amort saton o 2 Cout on bark horrs

r(_/ t) i [l d;r“q e f

Wgs

fimanc al ritvlmer:

2022

32192
2,597

(1.235)

33,854
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2022
T e

a) Analysis of charge in year

(restated)
2022 2021
e e R Eo00 €000
(:_';;;-ren;; tax . T S SR 5 4 A BB 8 5 SRS BB Ak et b <L G52 A R $ e e e
UK corporation tax cnarge on profitéilo:s) for the year (297) 1,648
dilistents in respecs of pror perods 3,196 (2.866)
Fort::’;n f;y su"er»aj 5,641 -
e !_%rgc . r&dm e e s 1 s st o 0 s e mﬂnalsmiamﬂm (1218)
Deferred tax:
Originat.cn ard reversal of dming differences 6,227 2074
Adjustmerss inrespect of oror periods {3,741) (3,998])
fax rates 5,268 17 491
Total mlrl}reg W 77584 9567
Tax charge on prcﬁtf(iéﬁs) ;n ort-iin.a‘l"ylt‘a{:ii.vit.iés.. . - 16,294 4 £,349

b) Factors affecting tax charge for the year
e tax assessed for the year is higher {2021 higher) than the stanczard rate of corooration tax in the UK of
19% (2021 18%). The dfferences are explainad below:

{restated)
2022 2021
uuuuuu : 000 £0o0
Smomiese b T o
o lioss) befare ta e 3 Gorate of
So?rjc/)r;\bo;\rtai\ir;they I’JTKL otfpllj/j 321012[5#\1}’?9; e 9,045 (4022)
Effects of
Expenses not geductiple for tax purposes 11,723 16,076
Ctner effects (868) 1.022
Ircome not taxable for tax purposes {8.102} {9,350
Ad,Lstrents ik respect of oror genods (545) (6,865)
Effects of change 1N tax rales 5041 11485
Totaltax chargeforthe yeaurw S o - - ) 16 294 - m8,349

c) Factors that may affect future tax charge
Tre Finance Act 2021 enacted on 10 Sune 2021 increased the main rate of UK corporation tax from 19% to

25%, effectve L Apri, 2023 Deferred taxes on the balance sheet have ceen measured at 25% (2021 25%)
which represents the future corporat:on tax rate that was enactea at the balance sheer date.

Mote 26 details the prior period adjustments.
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8o

Software Goodwill Development Total
(restated) rights

Group £000 £'000 £ 000 ) £'000

cos“; SN o < e
At July 2021 (restated) 964 726,602 10,216 737,782

ACgrea troug basiness - 20,042 4058 34,100
corrninatons irote 27

Additicons 2.125 - 1,040 3,165
Disposals - (21,118) - (21,118}
Uom or va mlahu - 7920 - 7930

o e BaERA T naieo, v ommeny MR R e § % REITECSRRgal

At30 June 2022 ' 308 743456 15314 761859

Accumuiated amortnsahon

A1 Juiy 2021 trestated) 107 159,902 10134 161,043

62) - (2.462)
- (152} - 192}
rpa rrnert - 7913 - 7913
Charge for the yea- 12 37314 523 37,849
2022 ' ' 119 202475 1557 Wzo4 151

Chznosais - {24

Lass g transiat

Net book value
At 30 June 2022 2,970 540 981 13,757 557 708

857 566,700 9,182 576739

AL E0 June 2021 (rw:'a* "i'w

The gain on translation of fore g currency deromimaied goodwill 13 recognaes in other comgrehens.va
ncome, Amorasation of goodwid s charged to administration Costs
Detals of the subsidanes scguired durng tne year ended 30 June 2727 can e fourd in note 27

result £2 5m of accumulated goodwall

)

n 3
anot. daf.o Vwas recoanised © tae current year and £19 3 of goodw il was realised or: the <ate. Garr on

sale recogn sed 1n the profit and loss ir rewation to this rarsaction was £28™
Frogrrrent of E75r fas peen recogrised on qoadvel (2021 none
NG assels have beer cledged as secunly for tabutes 27 yearerd (2071 ~cne
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2022

Land and Power Plant and Network Assets under Total
buildings stations machinery assets  construction {restated}
{restated) i
Group £'000 £'000 £'060 £'000 £'000
Cost '
A1 July 2377 lresietes] 8,531 317467 1,695,437 27,488 43277 2,092,000
Addihors 829 1,534 7R.647 £(,452 23B,006 374,480
,f.'{;qized e sagh pm \‘ 1308 - 51,344 - 57663 110,315
CLImzraners indte £/,
F¥fia - vatue movernen: - - 368 - 2,294 3662
Trarsfers - €8 1065 30,93¢ {32,070) -
Dusooca's (135) (75,951) - - {76,086}

At30June 2022 10,533 319,071 1745911 118,686 310,170 2,504,371

Accumulated depreciation

At 1 Sy 2021 4410 90,059 414,555 1,290 - 510,318
“hrarge for ine year 183 17,130 81.141 3.348 - 101,802
Dispasals - - {182} {z21) - (403)
FX movement - - (776) - : (776)
At 30 June 2022 4593 107189 494742 4417 - 610941
o UV e . e T ¢ e 2 e
At 30 June 2022 5,940 211,882 1,251,169 114,269 310,170 1,893,430
AtSOJu_r'leEOZI_(Te-Sga;emGW - 4,121 o ‘227,4 [0%:] 1,280,878 25958 " 43277 1.581.687

Included within tangicle assets are capitalisec nnance costs drectly attributable w bringing the assetinto
use. The net carrying arnount of assets held under finance leases included in piant, machinery, fixtures ard
fittings ¢ £57,785,000 (2021 £51.534.000 ) fncluded in network assats is a provision of £1,023,000 for
obsclete equipment and developrnent

Tre Company had no tangible assets at 30 June 2022 (2021 nonel

Mote 20 detalls the prior perad adgiastments
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2022
:LQ oL

Untlisted
investments

Group e e e e et EO00
Comt and net bOOk vaiue Cee e e s S e R .

AT Jduly 7021 11,000
Additions 129452
)m% ‘(305,000}
At30dune2022 35452

J\:L;O,

Ar 30 June 2021 - ‘ 7 ) 11.000

Total
£000

seaeas TR HGLL . VhESMacdg.

11,000
129,452

(105.060}
35,452

100

Subsidiary
undertakings
£000¢

i aes e e L S e Y

2311678
hediiens 228,300
i ‘lwuf ats )
At30dumezozz " 2539978
Accumulated rmpa.rmeﬂgs o oo o

o 195,312
Rewvorsal of iripairments {155,312}

AL 20 June 20

Kt 36",:]une 2022 e+ e e e+ e s+ s e e =
Net book value
At 30 June 2022 2,539,978

MR e A T e ses

2311678
228,300

2,539,978

195,312
(125,312)

2 539 978

2 116 366

Detals of related Lroertacings are showa in roie 29

Lnlizied rvestrnents ’(”'Y‘F"’ e tne Group's %okd\rg of the members ramal of Terdo LLP, a‘erar

business, and s sharersi

the ntenior of Cc;ﬂduf;in,

requirerients and toou
time to tme. Ferr's imyes:

The direciors o

w
i

Tradgirg L

__P noane with Fe”‘ﬂ Casn
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33 oo s

Cash includes cash ir hand and deposits rapayabls on demand.

Restricted cash represents cazl for which the Group does not have rrmediate and direct access or for
lre

wh.ch regulatory o7 legal reauirements restrict the use of the cash

Group
2022
“ - . o E'ooo
- s A b s R R R S . 155673 11},
Rth' cted cash 60 592 55, 357
Cash at bankand in hand . o T 256 415 - 7“1?2 A78

Restricted cash s comprised of 726,000 keld in Escrow and £59.5866 0070 of cask: held i subsidiaries wth

bi-arnua. distributior windows.

The Cormpany had a cash balance of £6,£222.C0C a5 at 30 June 2022, nore of which was restricted (2021

none).
Group

2022 2021
‘ ) B o _ E'000 £0C0
£sh stock 1,538 2,195
Fuel, spare parts and consumables 26,023 18,593
Property develaprnent Wio 156 918 /5 923
184 479 94 7’11

The amodnt of stocks recogrised as an expense dunng tne year was £120,413,000 {2021 £41.212 000}

-

Ircluded 0 the fuel, spare parts and corsumables stock vaiue is 2 provision of £390,000
stock (2021, £459,000). Imcluding ir property deveicpment WIS s g provision of £628 000 for warranty and
site specific provisions

for unusable fuel

here has bean 1o imparrment recogrisad darng the year on stock (2021 none] No inveniery has been
plecged as security for liabluties (2021 none)

The Comzarny had no stocks at 20 June 2077 (2021, none;.
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2022

Loans and advances (o customers
Amounts falling due within one year
Loans and advances 1 Customers

“rade detions

Arncurts owed by related paries {rete 24y
Ornar Jenions

Corporatior tax

Dervative Tnara abinstrurrents (raote 210

Pregay-rents and accruerd roore

223,239
42,050

20,199

54,409

{restated)
2021

16,128

365,384

154375

558002

LLEOO0 .

Company

_oars and advances 1o custemers are stated net of provisions of

Prenaymrents and accrued imcome are statea n

and repaysble on demarc (2021 non?)

MNote 26 detsls the pnor period ac usiments

el of

g balances are unsecured
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Group

2022
£000
S
58,004
8,161

24,362

B AT Sk he R i h s e H R R b B e e L FTT EY

Bark toans ang overcrafts (note 16}
Teade croditors
Other taxation and socal secunty

Cther creddaors

Arcounts due teo related parties (rote 24) -
i

Finance lezsas inote 16) 2,428

Dervative finare al irsteuments (note 215 -

I\Uru.:l d de ferren: nCome

256 152

75,465

restated)
2021
E£'000

AR 8B BB B A s e S0 BT

47,386

23,390

55,906

3147

143

72 087
ZOE 059

Company

2022
£'000 £000

g 2 R DI B s e N TEUSE PR

76 16

- 20,203

373 2 7u5

449 22 924

Amounts falling due between one and ﬁve years

Bank loans and overdrafts inote 16)

Finance leasas (note 161

Dervative anancial instraments (nete 21)
Cither creditorns

e St §

Group
2022 2021
E'OOO £000

gy

383,070
5,899 6,125

5 364 G s

394 333 ?58 8

247,297

5 41-)

Amounts falling due after more than hve years

Group
2022
£000

2021

Bark loamc and overdrafts (note 16}

Finance leases (note 16i

Danvaive inan Instruments (n

Total creditoss falling due after mora than one year

598,092

573,416
24,676

577.235
24,495

- 4? 772

644 502

992,425 903,339

£000

Amounis owed to reiatec parties are un

Mote 26 detans the orior perod adjustiments

rre Company has no creditors due in greatar thar one year.

cured, ron-mnterest bearing and repayable on aemand.
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2022

16 oo L e oo

2022 2021
e £’°oo~w‘ . . £ O(\O -
o e oo B
Ce pewween one and fve years 383,070 247297
573,416 577235
7 V - ) o " 1044218 @798

The Compary nad no bank loans at 30 Jure 2022.

The bank loars are secured aganst assets of tie Group with each ioan as reld by the su
d .

ary shown beiow

Interest rate 2022 2021
aomied e morin SONIA plus 160% 429 138 ;158140 )
Cenzs Enargy and Infrastructiure Hrniten LIBOR/EURIBOR plus 2 00% - -
s} ?
Fhos Fregy 2 31_’;6;1”;55 Een P 30,946 24,995
12% + 6 month EURIBOR 56,079 -
Boomerarg Tnergy  irmed & month SONIA plus 1.50% 284,348 295,344
Darlingtor 2omt Solar =arm Pty [imsea 6:49% (swap (atfg?‘;,ifagr;ﬁ) 114,026 -
Melton Renewabsie Energy UK Limeterd & maonth SONIA plus 2.35% 85,718 103439
Drlacca W soloos B 1.7% + BBSY 31,614 -
Elivig erres Len ted % + SONIA + .2‘5% o 12,306 -
utitisaton fee
ZesieT Asset Managemient i uriea Fixed rate 2.5% 43 -
N o 1088218 818
SON'A replaced LIBOR as tne effective intercanx lerding rawe systers frorm 1 January 2022 “he rate change
resuited ir 1o commercial impact to the DLsness
Finance leases
The future roemirum finance lease payrments are as folows
2022 2021
£000 £C00
Jﬂ)mamg ;4,3 ,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,, IR
Mot ater tran gne year 2,428 3166
Later tran one year and not larer nan Ave 5,899 6,196
Latar trar e years 76,461 72,013
TOtEl GrOSs pagrterts 84,788 81,375
-e35 firance chages (51,785} (47609
Carrying amount of the llablllty - o i - o 7 o 3..’;,003 73 766

Tne fimra~ce

rerital, rengwan O

cecured aganst

The Comrpary nad no irance
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2022
I S N I T

Decommissioning (restated) (restated)
provision Deferred tax Total

Group £'000 £000 E'000

BB ettt & LR B T N D S D A TR B 2 vk

At 1 July 2021

B I AV,

20439 20,533 41,372
Ircrease racogmseand i profit and loss 21 11495 11,516

Increase recognised through othar comprehensve Inome - 18,202 18,202
rrsairrent 16 - 16
Increzse recognised i Axed assets 23656 - 23656

Recagrsed on subsidiary scquistions - {3.568) (5.568)
Ad usterent in respect of pricr years - {5465) {5465

LInwinding of discount 245 - 249
Ad ustrent relating to change in acoounting sshimate {3,375 - {3,3/3)
i 15 ] - o 15
41,597 82,620

Garon tra .
41,023

At 30 June 2022

Tre decornriss.cning orcvision is Fela to cover future abligations to retlrn land on which there are
operational wind, iomass and solar farms, ¢ their onginat condition. Tne amounts are not expected (o be
utiused for n excess of 25 years.

Tre Company had no provisions st 30 June 2022

Nate 26 detaiis the pnior pericrd adjusiments
R SIS B RO LE T M0 I SR AP LTS SRR o
Tre Group and Company have the following share capital.

Group 2022 2021

Allotted, called-up and fully paid £000 £000

o ez

" 3 i i g A AR

1616,622,011 (2021 1496,755,258]

2 )
Crdmary shares of 2010 each 161,66 149676

Company 2022 2021
Allotted, called-up and fully paid £'000 £'000

srssnzTnaE LI PEITNT . i 2O R0
1616622 011 (2022 1495,/55,258]

Crdinary shares of £0 20 each

161,662 149,676

Curing the year the Group :ssued 119866754 (2021 1,501.159.278 ) ordinary shares of £0.10 each for an
aggregate nommnal value of £11,987000 (2021 £153.120,0600; OF the snares issied during the year, total
consideration of E203,750,000 (2021 £2,216,695.000) was paid for the shares, giving rise to a premium of
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£191,763,0C00 (2021 £173,118.000) Dunng the year ine GroJp nurchasss ml (2021 4,444,020) CE s owr

ordrary shares of £0.10 each wth an aggregate norminai value of Enmil (2027 £444 000) Total consinerarcn
of Erul (2021 £6,842,000) was oaud for the shares, giving ree w0 & prerium of Er {2025 £5,393,0008]

The Group ras adopled predecessor acoounting princp'es as it was formes az part of a greup
reconstructon, therefore the share capita. and shase premium aCcourt are trearad as 7 they haa abways:
existed Movements in snars capita’ ans ng both before and after the restructure are reported as moverments

N the Group share capital

Durmg the year the Company 1ssued 119,866,754 2021
ggregate nominal value of £11,98 Qe

312
cons deration of £203,750,00C (21 316,695,000 was pad "o the s*arés, giving nse o a prernium of
L

£1951,764000 (2021 £21£6,575 During tre year thie Groun purchased nil (#0210 4 444 020) of its cwn
of

£C

orgirary shares

&ﬁ

narrinal vaiue of £nn (2021 £424 GGC) Total consideratan

of Ent {2021 £E=,844,D 01 was oaid for the sharcs, g rg rse o a premam of [nil (2021 £5,38% 008
here is a single ciass of ordinary shares Tries are no restrebons or tre d stribunar of cividends ard the
repaymert of capital

Cash flow hedge reserve
e cash flow hedge reserve ¢ used to recora transact.ors ansing from the Group's cash §
redging arrangemernts

Merger reserve
The rnaerger reserve arses from the d flererce betweer tne far vaiue of e shares issues and the Daok
values of the subsidianeas acatired

ia}:& ol

The rmovement in ron-conroling INterests was as folows

Group
Note 2022 2021
E'000 E£000

3,721 9570

Sale of subsdary underrakings ard acquisi on
of non-contraling rterest

27 - (1842

Total comprenien

1255 attr.outatie to
ron-conTroilng nterests

{6,622} {4007

e 202z (2,801) 3721

A 2
[t
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A at 30 June 2022 there were nc contingences across the
21 0 Ch s

s 5 . -~ s
Carrying amcunts of fnancial assets ana tatilites

Group

T D Y Pt B X R A B L TR B e B hd 8 v B

Carrying amount of financial assets

Dokt irsrruments roeasured ot arroslised cost

Measdred at farr value through profit and Less

V'[(‘

e d at fdaf vw

Carrying amount of hnancuai liabilities

Measured at arnortised Ccost

Measdred at fair value through other comprehensive income

NTS 30 J

Il Othﬁr C w‘]pro}' E"‘EIVC IMCOme

|
|

i
L

Group

2022
£000

AR R SRR R BEA B RS bt e e 2

423,150

54,409

1,126,163

NE 20272

Group or Company,

Company

{restatled)
2021 2022 2021
£000 £000 £ DOO

TER B R A g BRI R ke LR s a he 4T 008

430,556 4,235 17,767
€,469 - -

9L6, 384 76 16
42772 - -

lod adjustrrents,
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2022
Derivative financial instruments
The Group's fingcial nsk managemsanr seas

and cast f.ow risk, and erergy marke: nisk

ek, credic 1Sk, - guldily

a) Market risk
Energy market risk

The erergy sector s expernencn
not acmeved due to changes in whoiesale erergy pfices ofi-take conracis o governmeart subsic

Changes in Government pOICy, OfF 1eguatar interventon mray resdlt in reduced sncome sireams wwtr.in tre

Group due to additional eves

Currency risk

The Croun prasents its consolidated inanc at staterrents 1 stering ard conaucts business i g runber ¢
Siner currendies, prnc p wly Lure anc Austratan aollar Corsecusnty, tne Qfoup i5 exposed to fore gn
chan : ‘ rsactionar experses and tne
trans

Transactional exposures

ransacticnal expcsures anse from admmnistrative

370 other cxperse in

s other trar re Group’s

ational currency (Sterling), The Grous enters inio forward foreign exchiangs contracts and foreign

exchange swaps o mitigate the exchange rate risk for certain fore gn currency payasles arg reccipts‘ Tre
C

:G-r"f.ra(,ts and swaps are measured a1 fair vaue, wn <his determined Lamg valeaion

orvab.e ifputs 2 Key INpLts Lsed o valuing the aenvatives ars mne forward
AU arnd CB2 EUR O 30 June 2022 the fair value of the fore.gn currency

ar assat of Cnil (2021 L6,.463,1

Translational exposures

Balance sheet translationa) exgosures anse on Consousancn

2

the retrrarsianon of the balance she-:—t of

-
{

acn stering ooerations Nio sierling, the Group's oresentabinna, currer cy The les

vel of
by maragement and the potentia foraign excnange moverment 5 within an accepiabe leve
therafore, typically, e Group's poloy to ~ot to actvay hedge these exposures

Interest rate risk

The Group has exposare to fluciuatiors 'nirterest mates on s borrowrgs YWhere the Group

borriwrg arrangements w I Loaling rats interest, 4 swap arrangemen:
a

e n

stin order (o omet gat

ton Dass and have slecied i«

rate : O
ISLaEAVINID g
Va'ue FE£ 4059 C0G 2021

§me e N Py - S b ov o
detercraton o the avel of house p-cesthara

533N5L, there 5 3 nsk that the Grouo rmay not e

g sig-ificant turbulence and trere < g rise that forecast leveis of ncome are
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2022

b) Credit risk

Customer credit nisk 1s mitigated through the Growp's credit control policies, which are in place to ensure

that oLr customers have ar approprate credit histary and are monitored on an cangoing basis

<) Liquidity risk

Lizuidity risk are managed oy ensuring that suffcient cash s gvatable to fund cortinuing and future operalions
'y S

Liguidity risk arises on bark loans in olace across the Group and s managed through careful mo-itonng of

covenants and sensible levels of debt Borrowing is on a long-term basis, whcreas our réevenue 15 received

througnout the year, as well as interest ard redemphions an cour short-term loar cool. Cash flow nsics

managed througn orgoing ca<n flow forecastirg (0 ensure receipts are sufficient to meet Labiities a: they

fall due

AT the year end tne Group mad capital commitments as "oliows,

2022

Group £000
Contracted for but net provided in these financ.at statemerts 347,254
Undrawr faclities on oans to borrowers 173,600

202t
£'000

[ —

90156
92683

A 30 June the Grouo Pad tota furure minnmum ease payments under non-canceliabie operating leases

az foliows

2022 2021
Land and Other Land and
buildings buildings
E'000 - E0C £000

Paymonts aue

Not later than ore year 8,707 661 8,031

e than ore year and rot later than nve 31,627 726 30,369
years
Later tnan five years

135,998 1,387 157332

kb WBE Dn N TR IEAI ISR

954664 - 118932

The Group had ro cther off alarce sheet arrangements {2021 none;.

Under sactions 394A and 479A of the Cornpanies Act 2006, the parent compary Fern Trading Limited has
guaranteed all outsranding lizbilities on those companies taking the exempticn (o which the subsidiares list

or pages 79 to 90 were subject 1o at the 3G June 2022 unil they are satished in full. These latulities total

£915m Suchk guarantees are erforceable aganst Fern Trading Limited oy any parzon o whom ary such

liagilizy 1s due.
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2022
e B A A SRS

O 12 July 2022, Fern Trading O ), & subisidiary of tne Group, successfuly sold
Da—rmgton Boomt Holdeo Pty Limied o Octopus Australa Master Trust A smrall proft of EBE0,060 was made
on the s3ie.

2, the Group acquirea nghits to a 2251 crean voucner and the right to Lse

=]

o
—

mobiie icenses fom Threa | ‘1\, vig a Strateqic Connectiety Agrearmrent, tnus mak ng the first steg fowards
becoming an recbile virtual ~etwork aperator

Under FRY 107 33 1A disclosures need not be giver of transactions entered inte between two or more
metriners of a Groug, proviaed that any subsidiary wihrcr is @ party 1o the ransaction s wholly owned oy

SLOCM & memper

During the year, fee < irged to the Croup by Octopas
Invesiments Lmited - rty CGue grifican: irfuence over the emity. OClopus nvesiments
Lirnred was rechara-:—d leaa ard crofess'oral fees totaling £10,155 (2021 £16,300) by the Groua. At tre
year end, an amount of £5 500 (20 219,500 was o Jtstanding which i3 naloded in trage cred.iors
The Grous s enr & prof T of jts nvestrrentn Tendo LLE a7 -2 "0 Key

roanagement persc-mret 1 cormaon. | nare of nrofit equal to £5 ?49 445 GO0 has

ar end, the Group has an ntere
£35,452,0500 2021 £11.0C0 0000 and accruad ncomre due o 55.276,04'1(26?

Ceer re:

u'
u
=

1gr sed by the Groun. Al the ya

The Group engages .« lending activities whiwor include balancss provided B2 r

entitios win key manzgernent perscrral = common, teans of £563490.0 3 :
ncome of F19789.000 (F021 £26,203.000! and defared 1ncome of Lal (2021 £101,000] were outstarding
atyear end Dunirg the year iterest income of £71685.G50 (2021 £ O

m

536,000) were recognised In relation to theze loans

During tne year the Creup acguired 9 reserve power Com panis
¥ f

from companies marsged by OClopus

Irvaestraents Limited, a re:ated party Sec note 27 ai ‘o detalle of e companias acaured

23t 20 Juma 2022 £ril (2021 £2.950,.275) was awed o the Campany by Bracken Taaing Lirmited, g relatd
amr

party oy key rmranagerrent gersornel in commo

Othar than the travsactions disc osed above, the Corrpany’s otrer r2lates narty rarsactons were with (s

wroily owned sunsidlary members of the Grous.

BH . e

inthe op mion ¢f the drectas trere s o Lamate conroling party or oarent 2omoany

i
i
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2022
26 oo e o

a) Group structuring review

We nave conducted a review of pricr years’ accounrting freatant of infercompary restraciunng. o ths
review management identified urarnortised goodwil batances in relation to these transacuons We rave
adjusted the previous years to ref.ect tne implementation of emartisation backdated to wher the relevant
transact'ons cocured The aeccurnulated impact for the goodwill amonisaicr in the profic and less “or 2021
was £8m {2020 £5 3rn} the movement of £2 7m has beer restated throughout tne 2021 comnarative
rnumbears A sumrnary of the mpact of the correction 1s provided oelow:

Year ended Adjustments Year ended
30 June 2020 30 June 2020
{(as stated) {restated)
Group £000 £'000 £°000
Goodwill 5835988 {5,335) 578,653
Retair=d earnings 41,185 5335 46,520
Year ended Accumulated Year ended
30 June 2022 adjustments 30 June 2021
{as stated) {restated)
C e ] £000 £'000 E£'000
Goodwill 602,711 {8,049} 594,662
Ratained «arnimygs (123,920) 8,049 (115.871}

As part of the review of the .ntergroup restructuring mentioned above, management identifed one of the
restraciures had been incorrecily accounted for in a sub sectior of the grauo No further errars were
discoverad i the review. The accumuiated impact for goodwid amcrtisation in the profit and oss for 2021
was £2.5m (2020 £1.3m;), the movement of £1 2m has been restated throughout the 2021 cornparative
numbers. This impact to the 2020 opening retained =armings was offset by £2.1m written back against bad
dept expenses. Managemert have correctes the identfiec error with the following 'mpact

Year ended Adjustments Year ended

30 June 2020 30 June 2020
{as stated) ({restated)

Group £0¢00 N F'OOO " £'000
Gacdwil o o 593,988 Teotsn 554,805
Retaned earmings 41,185 899 42,084
Debtors 842,549 (2.724) 839.825
Creditors” amounts faling due withur one year (232 813) 496 (232,317
Fixed assets 1,346,655 30,512 1377167
Year ended Accumulated Year ended

30 June 2021 adjustments 30 June 2021
(as stated) (restated)

Group ‘ ‘ ] E‘OOO - £000 £'000
‘;;g(g;«l[ ,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,, 50?711 SRS ‘[27,963) - S
Retained earmings (123,920 {321 (124,241
Debtcrs 600,726 (2,724) 598,002
Credhitors amounts falling due with.n one year 1207.318) 436 206,822}

Fixed asse:s 1,551,17C 30,512 1581682
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b) Deferred tax adjustment

rror reatirg 1o 2058 when deferred tax adjustiments were entered as a consc
Subsequ@"iﬂy not beer reversec We nave chec<eq the tax per suosidiary actow

S grot

We have conducted a review of all consolidation entries at subsect ons of the

un. We nave identfiec an

lidaticn entry and nac

ntand rave enzured that i

ﬁ
reevant balances are corect Tre error was posted at 3 r_or‘.sotidated leve. cny and nas now been correctad

Year ended
30 June 2020

(as stated}
£'000

R T A AARR LR AR Ao

SRRk onenar & xR nR R aeiaiseitataman s

41,185

Creditors amcunts falirg due wirein one yesr 1232.813)

Thes has a «nock affoct into dune 2021, the r Slow
Year ended
30 June 2021

(as stated)
Group E'OOO

(123.920)
(207.318)

Retz red sarrnge

Creators arnounts lalling due within ane year

]

s for 2022, the
s vears tax consot daton ca.culations

in preoanrg the tsx computation

YSIUMDIUCN i pre

a

ilell!
assets held with in the group some were available o0 2 consowd
liab i du

cart of these de‘erred 3ssets are Inrelation o
[

Ly, Onarandw doal cormnany basis the delerred rax in pravious
for wirhis other comprehens ve ncorn
for 2027 wa

cormnaral ve

s EABm (2020 £15 3m;) the moverert,

numBers,

A sammary of themgzact of e correcton s provided beiow

Year ended

30 June 2020

(as stated)

Group £000
SetE e famir e 41,135
Cash “ow neage reserve 63,857
Ceferred ax provaons (36.484)

R [T I

atex levello o

e Tneaccumulates mpact for thetax C

Adjustment Year ended
30 June 2020

{restated)

g'OOD £000

(4,764)
4764

Adjustment

£000

{4.764)
4764

Within the previously urrecogn
et the Gro
years had te
cash flow hedges he !(ﬁ witmn the group whicr are accoontea
cargs n e

of 200k has ceen resiated throughout the 2021

Adjustment

Year ended
30 June 2021
(restated)

E 000

(128.684)
202,554)

Group's “ax advisors nave noticed ar overlooksen

sed deferred tax

up's defered @x

correctly recognsed. A

profit ano oss

Year ended
30 June 2020
(restated)

25886
55462
(17.310%

£°000
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2022

Year ended Accumulated Year ended
30 June 2021 adjustments 30 June 2021
{as stated) {restated}
Group . £'000 £000 €000
Remred carrirgs azsozor um09® (133013
Cash flow niedge resarye 17,098 {2,119) 14979
Doferred tax provisions {38,145} 17212 (20,933)
Summary of prior period adjustments:
Year ended Adjustment Year ended
30 June 2020 30 June 2020
(as stated} (restated)
GIOWD £000 £000 €000
Retained earnings T 41185 nze2e) 2735
Goodwill 582988 (34,517} 549471
Cobiors 842 545 (2,724} 839825
Fixed assots 1,346,655 30512 1377167
Ceterred 1o provisions (36,484} 19,174 (17.310)
Cash flow hedge reserve 63,837 (5.875) 59,562
Creditors amourts faling due within one year (232.813) 5,259 (£27.554)
Year ended Accumulated Year ended
30 June 2021 adjustments 30 June 2021
{as stated) (restated)
Group ) £’000 o £000 £'000
i —— ot ottt ﬁw(‘{;jq‘zo;* . e o ey
ool 602,711 (36,011) 566,700
Debtors 600,726 {(2,724) 598,002
Fixed assets 1551170 20512 1581682
Deferred tax provisians (38.145) 17.212 (20,933)
Cash ‘low herdge reserve 17098 {2.119) 14,979
Creditors amournts faling due watnir ene year (207,318} 5,259 (202.059]
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2022
BT s o e e

a) Reserve Power acquisition
Or 2 July 2021, the Group acquired 3 resarve gower sitag through tre porce
for consideration of £18

The foliowing tatles summanse the consideraucn naic oy the Group, the % value of ne assots acgured,

and the labiltes assumed at the accu s don date

Consnderat:on ] ] £'000

Ca )h - :

Cee aa N RERG AR e S s

tais of the fair vaue of the net assets acguired and goodwell ansing ase as follows
Book value Adjustments Fair value
£000 £000

N o 80,788 (28.553)
294 -

Trade ard other rershanis

Yrepayrnonts £35 -
Cash and cast: equnvalonts 7BER -
Trade anc omner crediters 12.208] - 12,2061

Loans (58 816) - {58.516)

Net assets acqulred 28 553 (28,553) -

The conscliceted statenart of comprenersve income for tre year noiddes £45 803,000 reverive and &
profit after tax of £686.000 1~ respect of this acousiteon

1
i
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2022

b) Doveryard Limited acquisition
On 22 Ociober 2021, the Group acauired Doveryard Lirmited and its subsidiary through the purchase of
100% of the share canital for consideration of £12 414000,

Tre following tables summarise the consideraton pad by the Group, the “air vaiue of assets acquired, and
labilities assumed ar the acquisttion date,

Consideration e e EO00
R ot e BT e fate EARES ELE SR CE R £ RRS URE E . 1«53;?
Llrectlj aﬁrlbm ole costs 1037
Total consideration R 13,414

Cetals of the fair value ¢f the net assats acquired and goodwil ansing are as follows:

Book Adjustments Fair
values value
£o00  E'000 £'000

Ficed assets ' ’ see T ‘ £60
Trade ang other recevales 52 - 52
Frepaymenris and accrued ircome 193 - 193
Trade and other creditors 467) - (467)
Net assets acquired I 347 I 347
Total conssderatlon e 13 414

Goodwill resulting from the business cornpinaton was £13.067,000 and has an estmated useful ife of 25
years, reflecting the lifespan of the assets acquired.

The consolidated statement of cornprehensive income for the year incudes Enil of reveriue and a los
before tax of E123,000 1in respect of this acquistion.




Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2022

¢) Dulacca acquisition
O 27 August 2021, the Groun arq
ourcr ase of 100% of the share capita. fo

The following tables surnmarise the contide
and tre liablibtes assume 3t the acguisia

rec Sulscca WF Heldeo FTY Jtd ard s three subsidianes throgah the
arsicerat

of £1155680,600

atien pad by the Groug, the fair value of tne ase

date A lst of the entties acguired ncluded n note 2

Consideration e - AUD’OOO Exchange Ratf £'000
[J'reat‘v sttrbutabie Costs 1126 1.8904 565
Tota! con5|derat|on 218683 o T 115,680
Desils of the far vawe of the ret assets acdurred and irtang:e arising are as foilows

Book Adjustments Fair Book Adjustments Fair
values value values value
o AUD'OOO AUD 000 AUD'OOO go00  £000 £'000

e pre g v L 1u7€%: AR 07633 R693? R ~56937
Trade anc othor recanvables 10,131 - 10,131 5357 - 5357
Cash ard cash colivaionis 102,072 - 103,072 54,525 - 54,525
{10 952) - 'l() 9:2) {5.782) - (5.7593)

209884 - 209,884 112026 - 111,026

mtgmq\ Gio - B 8 799 T T agsa
Total conssderatlon 218 683 115, 680

Intangioles re

refiectrg the Ufespan of e assers acguired

tax of £237,0G’J in res peﬂ* of tis acquisition.

sumng from the aseet porchase was £4,65

4,000 and has ar estmated useful lite of 20 years,

comprehersive income for the year includes £ri of revenue ana 3 0355 after

]
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2022

d) Zestec Asset Mangement Limited acquisition

Or 22 January 2021, the Groug acguired Zestec Asset Mangement Limited a project sources for rooftop
4/ = J

sclar, through the purchase of LOGX of the share capital for consideration of £4 765000

P

The folowing tables sammarnse the consideratior paid by the Grougp, the far value of assets acquired, and

iabilities assumed at tre acguisiton date

Considerati
Cash
Deferred consideration -

Direc: ?,' altripdtab’e costs

Total consuderatlon

Cetails of the fair value of the net assets zcquired and goodwill ansing zre ac foilows

Book Adjustments Fair
values value
E'000 £'000 £000
S 156 - 156
Trade and other creoitors (574} - 1574}
Trade and other recervahles 400 400
Cash ang cash eguivatents 1,012 - 1.019
Otner loans (46} - {46}
Net assetsaﬁqmred I S 955 S »955
Cocont e e e s s 3810‘.”
Totalconsnderatnon T e e 4 7657

Coodwill resuiung from the basiness combimation was £2,810,000 and has an estmated usefui iife of 1C
years, reflecting the estimated Ufespan of tre assets acquires

Tre consolidatad staterment of comorehensive income “or the year includes £198,000 of revenue and a oss
before tax of £434,000 in respect of thus acguisitior.
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2022

e} Elivia Homes acquisition
On 22 May 2022, the Group acquired Elivia Holdings Limted ard s subs maneas, through the purchase of
100% of the share caoital for consideranon of £32.664,.000.

The foilowing tasles summarise the siderancr paid by the Grouo, the fair value of gssels acguired. ana

c ac
abilities assurned at the acgwsiion date Alst of the erttes acquired are inciuded in note 29

Consnderatlon
Ca jag

31,684

Detalls of the (air value of the ner aiser

s

acquired and gocdwall arizsing ace az follows:

Book Adjustments Fair

values value

“ s fytepaunee FUUTTRARNN PO £ ooo E,OOO asnne. £'ooo
ntang.ole assets 11,767 - 11,767
Srock £9,939 - 69559

Trade: andt other debiors 2609 - 2605

11,603 - 11,603

Cash and Casr equ valent

w

Accruals and deferred ncomre (220) - 1420
Provisions {930} - (930
Ceferred tax 6,000 11,400) 4603

Trace ang (68453) - (62,453)
Net assets acquired 31, 533 {1,400) 30,133
(JU.JG WL ) 1.551

Total consideration 31,684

Googwi, rezulting fron the ous ress comc nauoen was £1,552, 000 and has an est matec Lzeul ife of O

years, reflecing the Ufespas of tre assets acgured

UL rmsnelt ol s aty. tion




28 cn T SN e

Cur reportad resuts are presarec in accordance with United Kingdont Accodr ung Standards, including
Financial Reporting Stancard 102, as detaled in iz Financal Staterments starting o page 25 of the Annuat
Report. 'n measuring our parformance, the nancial measures that we use inciude those thar have been
denved ror our reported resalts 0 order to eliminate factors that distort year-on-year cormrpansaons These
are corsideres non-GAAD financ al measures

Net debt

We provide net debt in addton to cash and gros: debt as a way of assessing our overall cash pesinon and i
is computed as follows

2022 2021
£000 £:000

1, O44 218 871.918
5,364 -

HRRARGN T ECHEDEAREY DR B AR DAR AT AT O KRR F PR WAL A WIARSNA RIS U 0 xR 5 8 B R il s

Bark .0ans and ovardrats

(‘ hm oans

Gross debt 1 049 582 871 918

11 f256 415) (172,478)

ﬁet de.l;.t e e it oo < e amt e 4 e et eeen deeem e e L 793 7 595,440
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EBITDA

Earnngs before interest, tax, degraciaiion and amartisation [E3ITDAT s calcuiated by adjusing profi after
tax for ‘rterest, tax, depreciation and amortisat on, in scdivon o income and expenses that do not relate © !
the day to day operations f t-~e Group We grovide ERITDA n addition to profit after tax as i arlows us o !

assess olLr perforrmance witncut the e of inancing ard caciizl espendidres,

Tre following taole aetals tre adiustrments rmade to the reported results.

(restated)
2022 2021

£000 000

Note
31,310

?::ro tl(lo;;) fo‘r the financial year

B

(31,012)

Amart saton of intangiye 3

Z 37849 27,704

mipa et of imtangible assets & 7913 -
Depreciation of targinle assets 2 101.8G2 84 657
Interest payaole and srmias expenses 3] 33554 36,067

Excopaona neres 1,105
lax 7 16,294 B.345

| ess

[ncome frorm ofher axed assat Iy

(5,245} 1449)
Share of operaung profit i oint venture - {1755]
Preft on disposal of sapsic anies (29,537} [28.568)
{130} (597)
EBITDA } 194,916 104,036

o

Imierest recawab e and sivikar mcome

MNaote 26 getals the prior panod adustments
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2022

29 e oc
Detads of the sapsidiary undertakings are as fobows

Country of Class of Principal
Name .. o e Bcorporation  shares =~ Holding actity i
Abbote Fem tor f ciar Energy Holding Limited™ UK Ordinary 100% Holding company
Adalirda Solar 22V LLmted” UK Ordinary 100% Energy generaticn
Agrizol-2 SARLE France Ordinary LU Energy generation
Al NMetwaorks Lirmited™ UK Ordinary 160% Holding company
Alipoints Fibre Limied®” LK Ordinary 100% ;i:)rsur;it;\;ork
Auchercarroch Energy L mited® UK Crdinary 100% Energy generat:on
Avouhirie Lang Company Limiteg'™” UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
Avenue Solar Farm Limnited”™ UK Cirdinary 100% Energy generation
Banbury Power Lirmited’” UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
Batisolare 5 SARL? France Crdinary 100% Energy generation
Batisolare 7 SARL? France Ordinary 100% Holding company
Beetley Energy Limited” UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
Beightocn Erergy Limited UK Ordinary 100% Dormant company
Beinneun Wina rarm Ltd™ UK Crdinary 100% Energy generation
Beilnouse Ene-gy Limited” UK Ordinary 1G0% Energy generation
Birch Esrate Solar Lirnited” UK Crdinary 100% Energy generation
Blaby Sclar Farm Limied” UK Ordinary 160% Energy generation
BMNRG IOW Limited™ LK Ordinary 1G0% Energy generation
Bolam Energy Limited™ K Ordinary 100% Energy generation
Boomerang Erergy Limited UK Crdinary 100% Holding company
Boreas Energy Limited™ UK Ordinary 100% Holding company
Bratton Fierning Limsted™ LK Ordinary 106% Energy generation
Breck Solar Limited™ UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
E%ﬂ;,@dyn so.r Developrnents Holdings UK Ordinary 100% Holding company
Bryn Yr Odyn Soiar Developments Limited” UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
Bury Power Limitea” UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
Cadoxton Reserve Power Limited™ UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
Calcias Energy Limited”™ UK Ordinary 100% Holding company

Carx Limites?® lreland Qrdinary 100% Energy generation
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Name )

TVIPI.

(‘awxe l E Lar —ﬁréq Lm#nd
Cathkin Energy Lirmited””
Causilgey Lmied”

Cedar Energy and infrastruciyre Limited

CEPE Berceronne SA3L7

Centraie Eollierne e Production d Energ 2 de
Grandoos SARL

CEPE oo iz Salesse SARLT

CEPE de tscomoe (Certrale Eoitenre ’je
Proguct on d' Erergie de Lacomrbel SARLY

CEPE de Marzanne SARLY
CEPE Haut ou saule’
CERE de i3 Roche Qatre Ruyieres SARLT
CEPE du pays de St Sene AR
CERSSAST

Chelson Meadow FFCTO/ [MEaaliv=

(Aﬁ

nwsbhon Sclar Farm Hoshings umited”
Chittering Solar Two Lirniteg”
Cilgweyr Erergy Limied”

Cianri Farm Limited™

CLP Ervrogas Lmited™

CLF Zervimes Lirnted’

CLPE 1991 L ted”
CLPE 19983 L mad”

s Lmites™

Sty L Lmiteds

e T ey bemTT
Ve o ST

CTLRE RCTZ = 1 Limnited™

Country of

incorporation

UK
JK
UK
UK

France

France

France

France

France
France
France
Frarice
France
UK
UK
UK
UK
UK
UK
UK
UK

IJK
UK
UK
UK
LK
UK
UK
UK
UK
UK

Class of
shargs -

Crdinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Ordinary

Crdinary
Crdmary
Ordinary
Ordinary

Ordinary
Crdinary
Crdinary
Qrdwnary
Crdinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Crdinary
Qrdinary

Ordinary

Crdinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Qrdinary
Crdinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Ordinary

Holdlng

DD

100%
100%
160%
100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%
100%
100%
100%
160%
100%
100%
16G%
100%
100%
100%
100%
106%

100%
180%
100%
100%
:0C%
100%
100%
106%
100%

100%

Principal

Aaf:twlty

Energy gmerahon
Energy generation
Energy generation
Holding company

Energy generation
Energy generation
Energy generation
Energy generation

Energy generation
Energy generation
Erergy generation
Erergy gereration
Holding company
Energy generation
olding company
Energy generation
Daormant company
Erergy generation
Erergy generation
Dormant company

Provision of Q&M
ServICes

Dormant comgpany
Dorrmant company
Holding company
Holding company
Holding company
Holding companry
olding company
Energy generation
Erergy generation

Erergy generation
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2022

Name

S R B e R BN VR AR w R R VR e S S RS URAS

C.PE wf\C 3A Limitad”

CLPE ROC - 4 uimited”™

CLPE ROC — 44 Lirmsted”

Clyre Power Limited”

Colsterwortn Erergy Limitec™
Connor Bridee Energy Limited™
Coteshach Energy Limited™

Cour Wind Farm (Scotland) Lirnited ™™

Crapnall marm Lirmited™

Crayfern Homes (South Coasy Limited!s

Crayfern Limitec**

Crayfern Suntey (Sunfold) Limited!”

]

raymarsh Limited™

Q

ssing Solar Farm Lirnited™

("\

ulvery Power Limited™

Cyron Power Limited™

Dafer Reserve Power Lirnited”™

Cairy House Solar Limited”
Deepdale Fa'm Solar Limited™
Doveryard Lirmrited™

Cirapers Farm Limited™

Culacca Frergy Project Co PTY Lid*?

Culacca Energy Project FinCo PTY Ltd*2

Dulacca Energy Project Holdco Co PTY Lid™?

Dulacez WF Hodeo PTY [td??
Dyffry Broayn Limited”
Ezkning Lirmited™

Elecsal Carrargue SARLY
Eiecsol France 7 SARLS
Elecsa! France 11 SARL®
Elecsol France 15 SARL?

Elecsoi France 19 SARL?

Country of Class of Principat
incorporation shares Holding actiult:! L
UK Ordinary 100% Energy generat on
UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
UK Crdinary 100% Energy generation
UK Ordinary 160% Energy generation
UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
UK Qrdinary 100% Energy generation
UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
UK Ordinary 160% Energy generation
UK Ordinary  100% Efl‘lffggi’;i
UK Cranay 1007 e s
UK Ordirary  100% gj}';fg;}i?eéz
UK Crdinary 100% Energy generation
UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
UK Crdinary 100% Energy generation
UK Ordinary 1G0% Energy generation
UK Crdinary 100% Energy generation
UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
K Crdinary 100% Energy generation
UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
Australia Ordinary 100% Energy generation
Australia Ordinary 100% Holding company
Australia Ordinary 100% Energy generation
Australia Ordinary 100% Holding company
LUK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
UK Crdinary 100% Holding company
France Crdinary 100% Energy generation
France Crdinary 20% Energy generation
France Crdinary 20% Energy generation
France Crdinary 100% Energy generation
France Ordinary 100% Energy generation




]
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2022

Country of Classof Principal
Name incorporation shares Holding activity
Flecsol Frarce 22 SARL France Ordinary 100% Erergy generatinn
Elecsol Frarce 24 SARL? France Ordginary 100% Erergy generation
Elecsol France 25 SARLS France Crdinary 100% Energy generation
Elecsol Franca 23 SARL! France Ordinary 160% Energy generation
Elecsa! Frarce 41 SARL® France Ordinary 100% Energy generation
Elensol Haut Var SARL? France Ordinary 100% Energy generation
Eiics Energy 2 France SASS France Ordinary 100% Holding company
Eimg Energy 2 Lirnited UK Ordinary 100% Holding company
£l ot Snergy I France SASY France Ordinary 100% Holding company
oldings 2 Lirmized™ UK Ordinary 100% Holding company
Elos Energy —oldings 2 Limited” UK Ordinary 100% Holding company
Eirss Energy Holdings Limited” UK Ordinary 100% Holding company
Elos Rerewab.e Erergy amited” UK Ordinary 100% Holding company
. Cons :
Clvia Development Firance Limited™ UK Crdinary 10G% fon trqct on of
domestic buldings
Ordinary Financial services
Eivia Holdirgs Lirnited UK Deferred 100% at s .
) holding companies
Preference
El'vie Homes iCenwall Lmitedt UK Ordinary 100% Comstruct\or_u!of
domestic buildings
) . _ O B o Construction of
Elvia Homes (Dorrmart 2) urriied UK Ordinary 106% . ;
domestic bulldings
s L A el ! qpes et . Construction of
Elvia Homes {Grarge Soad) Lmeed UK Ordinary 100% o
dormestic builldings
Elvia Homes (etley) Limited™! UK Ordinary 100% Delve‘lopment o
building projects
. .- . Construction of
wiz Homes Scutierny mred®s UK ina % . -
Elwi me uterny Umted Uk Ordinary 100% dormestic buildings
Eivia Homes (Surcitor; Limited ™t UK Crdinary 100% Const:ua!orj Qf
dormesti< puildings
Eovia Fomes Lritedt UK Ordinary 100% Drer-;xeﬁopmerjt of
budding projects
Fova Nort Lirncedt UK Ordinary  100%  Developmentor
buillding projects
Construction of
Ewva Cxord _miteg™ UK Ordinary 100% domestic bildings
Buying and selling of
own redl estate
Elva Zouth Lmied UK Ordinary ~ 100%  consiuctionof

dormnestic buildings
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2022

Country of Class of Principal

Name 7 ) in&erporatigﬂw shares kamHolding activity o
T o Construction of
Elivia Southern mited™ UK Ordinary  100% gj?ﬁ;tfﬂg‘ﬁé‘mng

owrl real estate
Elicombe Limitea™ UK Crdinary 100% Energy generation

Energy project
Energy Power Resources Lirited” UK Ordinary 100% ?ﬁ;:";gg?ee:tt and

services
EFR Ely Limited” UK Crdinary 160% Energy genaration
EP% Eve Limited™ UK Crdinary 100% Energy generation
EPR Garford Limitea™ UK Crdinary 100% Energy generation
EPR Rerewabie Energy Limited™ UK Crdinary 100% Holding company
EPR Scotand Lirmited®” UK Ordinary 160% Energy generation
EPR Tretford Limited”™ UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
Eucalyptus Ene gy Holdings Limited™ UK Crdinary 160% Holding company
Eucalyplus Energy Limited™ UK Crdinary 100% Holding comparyy
Feltweil Erergy Limited™ UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
Fern Energy Cour Hoidings Limited™ LUK Ordinary 100% Holding company
Fern Knergy Holdings Limitad™ UK Ordinary 1G0% Holding company
Fern Energy Limnited™ UK Ordinary 100% Heotding company
Fern Energy Wird Holdings Limited™ UK Ordinary 100% Holding company
Fern Fipre Limited™ UK Crdinary 100% Holding company
Fern Heaithcare Heldings Limited™ UK Ordinary 100% Holding company
Fern Irfrastructure Lirrited” UK Ordinary 1C00% Holding company
Fern Renewable Energy Lirmited” UK Ordinary 100% Holding company
Fern Roofiop Solar (A) Limited” UK Ordinary 1002 Energy generation
Fern Rooftop Solar (BRDY UK Ordinary 160% Energy generation
Fern Roofrop Solar (Zestec) Limited™ UK Ordinary 100% Ernergy generation
rern Trading Development Limitea™ UK Ordinary 100% Holding company
Fern Trading Group Lirm:ted UK UK 100% Holding company
Fern UX Power Developments Limited™ UK Ordinary 100% Holding company
Fiprophios Limited™ LUK Ordinary 100% Supply of fertiliser
Four Burrows Limited™ UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation

Fraisthorpe Winc Farm Limnited”™ UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2022

B T

Glenchamper Wind Erergy Limetec

Grange Wird Farm Bmiteg”™
Cuardbrnde SF z o 0!
Farbourne Power Lirmted”

Flayrmaxer (Mourt all; L™

Fayrnaier (MNatewooed) Holdngs

Mayma«ar {Natewood) Lia™

mitec”

Faymaker (Oakiands) Holaings Lrmited™

Haymaker {Oa«lanesy Lid”

Fein Power 2 Lmiredd”
kol Powser Limied™

Higher Knapp Farm Lirmiteg™
bl Eng Farrn Lormites™
Folaroor Cimited”

il Reserye Power Limited™
Horsit SPV L Cmited ™
Immrgnam Power uimited™
Iravelil Poweer Limited™

Jarmescn Roan trergy winiteg”

Juraszic Fibre Foldings Limited™

o Fower _irniteq”

Largan roaver mted””

Lennzr Somar Liriten™

e Commiuricaticns Lt

Locdaon Fower Lirmited™”

R T A

Country of Class of
incorporation shares
UK COrdinary
UK Ordinary
UK Ordinary
UK Ordinary
UK Ordinary
Poland Ordinary
LK Ordinary
UK Ordinary
UK Ordinary
UK Ordinary
UK Ordinary
UK Ordinary
UK Ordinary
LK Crdinary
UK Crdinary
UK Ordinary
UK Ordinary
UK Ordinary
UK Ordinary
UK Ordinary
UK Ordinary
UK Ordinary
UK Crdinary
UK Ordinary
UK Crdinary
UK Orainary
UK Ordinary
UK Crdinary
UK Crdinary
LK Ordinary
Uk Ordinary

kljlolding

AR Rt

100%

100%

100%

100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
160%
100%
100%
100%

190%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
90%

90%

100%
10G%
100%
100%
100%

100%

100%

Principal
tivi

Dormant company

Fibre network
production

Fibre network
production

Energy generation
Energy generation
Energy generation
Energy generation
Energy generation
Holding company
Energy generation
Holding company
Erergy generation
Holding ccmpary
Holding company
Energy generatian
Energy generation
Erergy generation
Erergy generation
Energy generation
Erergy generation
Erergy generation
Erergy generation
Holding company

Fibre network
procduction

Energy generation
Erergy generation
Erergy generation
Energy generation
Erergy generation

Fibre network
production

Erergy generation

T T
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2022

Country of Class of Principal
e s eiene v Ameorporation shares ~ Holding activity ...
Lovegean Limited™ K Ordinary 100% Energy generation
Luminance solar Lirited™ UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
MIZ Solutons umited” UK Ordinary 100% Hoiding company
rManstor Thorme Limited™ UK Crdinary 100% Energy generation
March Energy Limited™ LK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
Marden Power Lirrsted” LK Crdinary 100% Energy generation
tMarley Tratch Solar Lmited” UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
Meadows Farrm Lirmted" UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
Melbourn Sclar Limitee™ LK Crdinary 100% Energy generation
Melton LG Energy Lirnited™ UK Ordinary 100% Holding company
Melton LG Holding Limited”™ LIK Crrdinary 100% Holding company
Melton 1.G ROC Lirited” UK Ordinary  100% ?Zﬁ;fgjmg
Melton Renewable Energy (Holdings) Lmited™ UK Ordinary 100% Holding company
Melion Renewable Eriergy hveweo Limitea™ UK Ordinary 100% Holding company
Melton Renewable Energy UK Limitea UK Ordinary 100% Holding company
Mill =il Farm Solar Limited™ UK Ordinary 100% Erergy generation
Mingay Farm Hcldng Limited™ UK Ordinary 100% Holding company
MSP Decoy Ltd” UK Crdinary 100% Energy generation
MSP Strete —tg” UK Crdinary 100% Energy generation ;
MSP Tregassow Limited” UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation €
FTS Hatchlands Solar Lid” UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation :
MNevern Powser L mited” UK Crdinary 100% Energy generaticn é
New Row Farm Limited™ UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation }
Mewlands Solar Lirmted’™ UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation !
Ninns Farm Lirmited™ UK Crdinary 100% Emergy generation '
North Perrott Fruit Farm Limiteg™ UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation E
Mortmw'ch Power Limited”™ UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation i
Notes Energy Limited™ UK Ordinary 100% Holding company !
Cgmore Power Limited™ UK Crdinary 100% Energy generation
Cldnall Energy Recovery Holdings Lirites” UK Ordinary 100% Holding company
One Ashford Fealthcare Linited UK Ordinary  89% Eg‘f{i‘f;:;emces
Cne katield Rosp-tal Lirmnited LK Ordinary S0% Provision of

healthicare services
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2022

Name

One Healthes

Cirta Wedgehil Solar Holdimgs Lirmited™

Oria Wedgeh.l Sciar Limited™
Pafreys Barton Limited”
Parciau Hold ngs Limeec”

Parciauw Limited™”

Par< Broadoard Limns

Pearrnat Solar 2 Lid”

Pitchforg (Condover Arrfield & Siockbateh;

L rmited™
Pitts Farm Limtes™
Forthos Solar Limited”

Pyrrig Lare Soar Ld”

Crueens Park Road brergy Lirmited”

Rangeford Crertzey miten”™

Rangefcrd Ciren

Rangefcre Dors ng Limited™
Rangeforo bcldirgs - imred™
Rangeicra Ficker'rg Lmitea”

Rangefora RAF Limitea™

Rangefers Relrerment Lvirg ~oidinm

ter Limmited™

gs Ld™

Country of

incorporation

((((( ea

UK
UK
UK
UK
UK

UK

UK

UK

Class of

shares

Ordinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
QOrdinary
Ord:nary

Ordinary
Crdinary
Crdinary
Ordinary

Ordmnary
Ordinary
Crdimary

Crdinary

Crd nary
Crdinary
Crdinary
Qrdinary

Ordinary

Oroinary

Ord.nary
Ordinary
Ordinary

Crdinary
Ordinary
Qrdinary
Ordinary
Ordinary

Ordnary

Holding

85%

100%
1002
100%
100%
1002
10C%

100%

100%

100%

100%

Principal
activity

EABAR AR e €T xEEEL

Holding company

Haolding company
Erergy generation
Eriergy generation
Holding company
Energy generation

Fibre network
production

Energy genergtion
Energy generation

Erergy generation
Haolding compary
Energy generation
Energy generatior

Care services for a
retirement village

Retirerment village
developmeant

Retirernent vitlage
development

Retrement village
development

Holding company

Ratirerment vitlage
development

Retirernent village
development

Holding company

Retirernent village
develioprnent

criergy generation
Energy generstion
Erergy generation
Energy generation
Erergy generation

Fiore netwerk
proguction
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2022

Country of Class of Principal
N sttt oo oo ... IMCOFPOFation  shares Holding activity e
Sirgrug Holdings Lirmited™ LJK Ordinary 100% Holding company
Sirgrug Lrmited” LK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
S itls Lane (Ragdaie] Limited™ LK Crrdinary 100% Energy generation
Skelrooke Erergy Limitea™ UK Crdinary 100% Energy generation
Slaugrtergate Umitea™ LK Ordinary 100% Erergy generaticn
Snetterten Renewsable Power Fuels Limited”™ UK Crdinary 100% ?ﬁeﬁply Of biomass
Snetterten Renewable Power Helaings Limited™ UK Crdinary 100% Holding company
Snetterton Renewable Power Limitec™ LK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
Solarfi LPC8 SARL? France Crdinary 100% Fnergy generation
Solarfi SPO1 SARL® France Ordinary 100% Energy generation
Solarh SPO2 SAR? France Crdinary 100% Energy generation
Solarf SFO4 SaRL France Ordinary 100% Energy generation
Solarfi SPOS SARL? France Crdinary 100% Energy generation
Solarfi SFO3 SARLY France Crdinary 100% Frergy generation
Solari SF10 SARL® France Ordinary 100% Energy genaration
Southcombe Farm Limiteg™ UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
St Asapr Power Limted™ LUK Crdinary 100% Energy generation
Steadiast Parkhouze Scolar Limited” UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
Steadfast Rudae Solar Lio” UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
Steadfast Shioton Belinger Soar Limited™ UK Ordinary 100% Energy generaton
Stellar Power Limited” UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
Stoneyhill Erergy Limited? UK Ordinary 100% Cormant company
Sulls Energy Limited™ UK Ordinary 100% Holding company
Surnmerstor Energy Lmited® UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
Sunley Crayfern Lavant LLPY™ UK NA 50% NA
Swisn Fore Contracting Limited® UK Ordinary 100% ;igsuﬁg\frk
Sw-sn Fbre Limited?® UK Ordinary 80% Holding company
Swisn Fibre Networks Lig® UK Crdinary 100% ;irgsuiifxork
Swish Fibre Services Lmitad® UK Ordinary 80% ZL%SJ‘C?;Y,?FR
Swisk Fibre Yorksrre® LK Crdinary 100% Fiore network

production

Swish Trading Limitec™ UK Ordinary 80% Holding company
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2022

Class of

incorporation shares

Country of

Name e
TGC Solar 202 Limited” UK
TGC Sotar 107 Lirited UK
TGO Srvar 68 Limiteg UK

S0 Solar 82 Lirnted™ UK
Tre Forn Power Compary Cmited”™ UK
The Haoll'es Solar Farm Lir--tea™ UK
Troreshy Estate [Buchy) Limitea™ UK
Tilingnarm Power cmited” UK
Todhils Erergy L mited”™ UK
Tredoywer Sar Limted™ UK
Turves Solar (i wed” LIK
UKSE 15 Sofar Lirmteg™ UK
Urited Mines Energy Lirmited ™ UK
VOSE Lidg™ UK
Yiiona Soar Lrmited” UK
Viners Energy Lirnited UK
Vo Limmitea™ UK
Voliafrance 01 2ARL! fFrance
Veoitafrance 05 SARLY France
Vorafrarce 12 SARLY France
volafrarce SARLY France
Vorboss Lmited™ UK
Yornoss LS Ire® UsA
wiadsss ok Crean Lrmrec UK
Wadsw ok Greer Feoperty Services Lroted” UK
MNacr ngton Sower Lmites UK
MNateroo Soar Park —old ros e ted” UK
Materico Soiar Park Lied UK
Vieex Farm 2 _mated UK
Westwooo Power Lirmted” UK
Weostwoon Sosr L oed” UK

Ordinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Crdinary
Ordinary

Ordinary
Crdinary

Ordinary

Crdinary
Ordinary

Crdinary
Ordinary
Crdinary
Crdinary
Ordmary

COrdinary
OCrdinary

Ordwmary

Ordinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Crdinary
Ordinary
Ordinary

Holding activity

100%
100%
1060%
100%
160%
100%
160%
100%
100%
100%
100%
160%
100%
100%

10G%
100%
10C%
100%
100%
i00%
100%

10C%

160%

10C%

Principal

R

Energy generation

Energy generation
Energy generation
Energy generation
Holding company
Energy generation
Energy generation
Energy generation
Erergy generation
Erergy generation
Energy generstion
Energy generation
Energy generation

Fiore netwaork
production

Energy generation
Holding company

Fibre natwork
production

Energy generation
Erergy generation
Energy generation
Erergy generation
Holding company

Fibre network
production

Retirement wllage
operator

Service charge
administrator

Erergy generation
Helding company
Ernergy generation
Erergy generation
Energy generatior

Erergy generation
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2022

Country of Class of Principatl
NamE i st e oo TCOTPOTAYION | shares Holding activity . s
Weinercen Eﬂergy wrmated” UK Ordinary 100% Energy gereration
Wharf Power Lirmited™ UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
Whidden Farm Limited™ UK Crdinary 100% Erergy generation
Whirrey Hil Erergy Limitea™ LK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
Wwircelle Solas Hoidirgs Limited™ UK Crdinary 100% Holding company
Woverrampon Power [1d™ LK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
Wryde Croft Wind Farm Limiteg?®” UK Grdinary 100% Energy generation
WSE Bradfora Limted™ UK Ordinary 100% Energy genération
WSE Hulav.ngion Hold ngs Limited™ UK Ordinary 100% Holding company
WEE mulavngion Limited™ UK Ordinary 160% Energy generation
WSE Park Wall wirmited” K Ordinary 100 Energy generation
WSE 2yde Drove Limiteg™ UK Crdinary 100% Energy generation
Zester Asget Managemen: Lirniteg” UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation

Acquired after year end Date

Ferm Roofiop Salar (8805 Limtea T 09/08/2022
Cuckoo Internet Ltd 31/08/2022
Vitei# Digital Limited 13/07/2022
40% Limired 22/11/2022

“Subsidiaries exemipt from audis oy virtue of sABDA of the Companies Act 2006
~ ¥
TSubsidianes cxemnipt from audit by virtue of 34794 of the Companios Act 2006
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2022

Dlssolved or sold dur;ng the : year and up untll sugnmg

Bemm Ln He “d|r‘gs, Ln“mtﬁd

Ridge Wind Acgusition Limited

ferr Energy Ridgewind Acquisitiors Limited
Fern crergy RidgeWnd Haodings Umited
Ferr fﬂer(‘j Partnersnips Holdings Limited

Fraisinorne (Holding) Limited

UY Oldhail Erergy Recovery Limite
Comm2l Lid

Darlington Pomt Holdoo Pty Lirited
Daringion Pom: Selar Farm Pry Limited
Darlngion Point Subnoldco Pty Lirnied
Nordic Power Davelopment Liriterd
Voyrinkangas Wind rarm Oy

Saunamaa Winag Farm Cy

-------- i R as, BEHae s T Tawas UMD 14 4 T TeRda’ TTYemmz. . CPTEMRL

20/07/2021
14/09/2021
21/09/2021
21/09/2021
29/03/2022
13/09/2022
15/05/2022
08/07/2022
08/0772022
08/07/2022
23/12/2021
23/12/2021
23/12/2021

excert oI iose set oul oelow

1 ul Grzybowska 2/29, G0-131, Warsaw, Poland

[

neen: Masonc LLP. Capital Sguare, 58 Morrisor Sreat, tamiburgh, Scotland, E-3
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Fern's share price has performed in line with targets

Fern Trading Limited is an urlisted company. Every month, our Board of Direclors agrees a erice at which il
will be willing 1o issue new shares The share priee is unaucited

The figures below incluce the share price of the prevous parent (now Fern Tradimng Group Lmited) a5 well
as this entity.

Share price growth since inception: Fern Trading Limited

19

18 ~
i6 ™

15 i,
M

14 D
M

13 o

12 e
11

1ia
2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022

Parformance 1s calculated based on the sale price {or Ferris shares at 2 June each year The share price s
rof supject to audit by Ernst & Young LLP

Annual discrete parformance

Financial Year Discrete share price performance

B g S T S T AT LI I TR

June 2021-22 9.91%
June 2020-21 4.h7%
June 201819 7 7 7 6.23%
JeezolZA8 105%
JL."‘;el‘ 20167‘17‘ - - - | 5.54%

3.83%

June ZC14-15 3.98%
Jane 20132-14 3.72%
June 2022-13 3.97%
June 201112 1.02%

Source Jctoous Irvestvients Limited, 2 June 2022
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Directors and advisers

Direciors
PS Latham
KJ Willey :
G Bariow

T Arthiur (appointed 1 July 2022)

Company sscratary
Gropus Company Secretanal Services Limiteg
Company number
12601636

Forward-locking statements

acIors thar are o

L.

o6 give" Tat any particular expecianion w

acuvities should ot be takern as a recresentation that su

constued as @ proff forecac

> and future everts or developments These siarerments are oa
of managerent and are 5.
eyond the conusl o

se met and forward-lecking sta
chtrencs or actviugs will ¢

gerformance carnat Be reiied on as a gu de 1o fuiure performrarce Nothirg in theg Arnaal

Registerad office

oth Fioorn 23 Folborn,
London, Engand ECIN 24T

Independent auditors

Ermst & Young LLP
Bedforo House,
16 Bedford Streer,
Beifast B2 707

ine certa n forward-leoxrg statemrents relatea w the Company's fulure pusiness

2d on e Cuirent

o)

ect o agsumotiors, risv: and uncertanues,

]

s
“the Company Accordimgly, ne assurance can

nents regard Ng past

ortnue i~ the




